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CITY OF ONAWA 914 Dimic,nd Street' Gnaws, Iowa 51040 

December 9, 2013 

Honorable Mayor and City Council 
City of Onaw 
Onawa, Iowa 

We are pleased to provide you with the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) of the 
City of Onawa. This report is for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013. The report is submitted 
each year as required by State Law, Chapter 116. The reports prepared according to generally 
accepted accounting princies (GAAP) for government as established by the Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board (GASB) It is audited by Henjes, Conner & Wi'liams, P.C. 

The City's Department of Accounting prepared our report. Management of the City is responsible 
for the accuracy of the presented data and the cometeness and fairness of presentation, 
including all disclosures. To the best of our knowledge and belief, the enclosed information is 
accurate in all material aspects and is presented in a manner designed to fairly present the 
financial position and results of operations of the City as measured by the financial actMty of its 
various fund. All disdosures necessary to enable the reader to gain a complete understanding of 
the CRY of Onawa's financial activities have been induded. Management of the City has 
established a comprehensive internal control framework that is designed both to protect the City's 
assets from loss, theft, or misuse and to compile sufficient reliable information for the preparation 
of the City's financial statement in conformity with GAAP. Since the cost of internal controls 
should not outweigh their benefits, the City of Onawa's internal controls have been designed to 
provide reasonable, rather than absolute assurance that the financial statement will be free from 
material misstatement. 

GAAP requires that management provide an introduction, overview and analysis to accompany 
the basic financial statement, in the form of Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A). 
This letter of transmittal is intended to complement MD&A. found immediately fdlowing the report 
of the City's independent auditors, and should be read in conjunction therewith. The auditors 
report is included in the financial section of the report. 

A Touchstone Energy Partner 4> 



PROFILE OF THE CITY OF ONAWA 

The City of Onawa was incorporated in 1859 under the provisions of the Iowa State Legislature. 
It is located in Monona County on Interstate 29 about 35 miles south of Sioux City, Iowa and 60 
miles north of Omaha, Nebraska on the western edge of Iowa. The population is approximately 
3000. 

The City of Onawa operates under a Mayor-council form of government. One counoil member is 
elected from each of the City's four wards and two are elected at-large. The City administrator is 
responsible for the day-to-day management of the City. PJI departments and department 
directors report to the City Administrator, with the exception of the Library Director who is 
supervised by an appointed Board of Trustees and the police chief who reports to the mayor. 

FINANCIAL INFORMATION 

The City of Onawa maintains an internal control structure designed to provide reasonable, but not 
absolute assurance that the assets of the City are protected from loss, theft, or fraud and that 
adequate accounting data are compiled to allow for the preparation of financial statements in 
conformity with generally accepted accounting principles (GM?).  The requirement for 
reasonable assurance recognizes that: (1) the cost of a control should not exceed the benefits 
likely to be derived; and (2) the valuation of costs and benefits requires estimates and judgments 
by management. 

In addition, the City recognizes the importance of leadership from management in these controls 
The City Council has adopted a personnel policy that provides guidance as to certain elements of 
the internal control structure. The employees are updated on changes to these ethics and 
personnel policies to stress that internal control are an important element of the public's trust. 
The City has incorporated the personnel policy in the training of all employees and elected 
officials. 

The foundation of the City's financial planning and control is the annual budget. The budget 
process includes sessions with staff, management, and the City Council. To ensure compliance 
with legal budgetary contrds, the City Council and management receive monthly reports 
comparing budgeted amounts to actual expenditures. The City Council may make additional 
appropriations during the year for unanticipated revenues or capita! protects which were not 
completed in the prior year. Budget-to-actual comparisons by fund are provided in the fund 
subsection of this report for all funds requiring an appropriated annual budget, and summarized in 
the notes to the financial statements. 

State laws require audits for cities such as Onawa to be conducted by the auditor of state or by 
certified public accountants. In addition to meeting state requirements, the audit must meet the 
requirements of the federal Single Audit Act of 1984, and the Single Audit Act amendments of 
1996 which substantially revised various provisions of the 1984 Act, and the related U.S. Office of 
Management and Budget's Circular A-133. An audit is conducted annually in accordance with 
generally accepted auditing standards and the standards set forth in the General Accounting 
Office's Government Auditing Standards. It must examine, among other things, the financial 
condition and resources of the City, and accuracy of the City's accounts and reports. The audit 
report is contained in the Financial Section which follows. 



Local Economy. The City of Onawa is the largest City in Monona County, and also the County 
Seat. Onawa offers a convenient small town atmosphere while being only a 30 minute drive to a 
large metropolitan area. 

The City's downtown as well as other areas of town continue to see improvements to buildings 
through the grant program established several years ago. The program gives a business that 
qualifies and spends money to remod or improve the exterior of their building a $2,500 
forgivable grant and a $2500 loan from the Community Foundation. 

The City experienced a decrease in local option sales and use tax of 4.72% from fiscal 2011-
2012 to 2012-2013. The local option sales tax is used for economic development (10%), 
infrastructure (15%) and property tax relief (75%). This decrease demonstrates an economy 
consistent with the country as a whole. 

LONG-TERM FINANCIAL PLANNING 

The City is in the middle a five year comprehensive plan which covers some of the Citys goals for 
the community and economic development. Included in the plan is a capital improvement plan 
which includes all improvements of the City. This plan addresses City improvement projects 
including all governmental and enterprise functions, The plan also incorporates the vision of the 
Monona County Economic Development to establish an industrial park east of Onawa. 

The City Council continues to increase user rates in all three utilities. The goal is to increase 
them over a period of a couple of years to generate a profit and increase reserves. For example. 
the electric utility did not borrow funds but used reserves for the last project that cost $705,000. 
The goal is to replace these reserves over a 10 to 15 year period similar to what a bond payment 

uld cost the electric utility. 

The City along th the community foundation continue to buy homes that have been red tagged, 
then clear the lot and sell it for a very reasonable price to encourage individuals to build a new 
dwelling and, in turn, increase tax base. These inf ill lots are better sold than having a new 
housing development being constructed. The utilities are in place in the infill lots so no cost to the 
utilfties. 

The City is planning an airport study to determine what repairs need to be completed over the 
next several years. 

In the current fiscal year, the City let a bid for patch panel work. This will continue into the next 
fiscal year to repair streets where panels have sunken or are broken. 

The City hopes to make some improvements to the downtown area, including updates to the 
streets and lighting. Grants and other potential funding sources are currently being looked into in 
order to facilitate these improvements. 



AWARDS AND ACKNOWLEDGMENTS 

The Government Finance Officers Association (GFOA) awarded a Certificate of Achievement for 
Excellence in Financial Reporting to the City of Onawa for its comprehensive annual financial 
report (OAFR) for the year ended June 30. 2012. In order to receive this award, the City must 
publish an easily readable and efficienUy organized CAFR. The report must also satisfy both 
general'y accepted accounting principles and applicable legal requirements. The award is valid 
for one year on'y. The City is submitting the 2013 annual financial report to GFOA for review to 
determine its eligibility for an award. 

The preparation of this report could not have been accomplished without the support and 
dedication of the entire staff of the finance and administrative departments. Appreciation is also 
expressed to the mayor and City council for their support and interest in the financial operations 
of the City in a responsible and progressive manner. 

Respecifully submitted, 

an 
City Clerk 

Terry Chr n n 
Deputy Clerk 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

In the Honorable Mayor and 
Members of the City Council 

City ofOnawa. Iowa 

Report on the Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-lype 
activilies, c]ie discretely presented component unit, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund 
information of the CITY OF ONAWA, IOWA, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2013, and the related notes 
to the financia! statements, which collective[y comprise the City's basic financial statements listed in the table of 
contents. 

Management's Responsibility (or the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial slatements in accordance 
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United Slates of America; this includes the design, 
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the prepamtion and fair presentation of financial 
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or erron 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit 
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards 
applicable to financial audits contained in Govern men! Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of 
he United Slates. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 

about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors judgment, including the assessment of the 
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or entr. In making those risk 
assessments, the auditor considers internai conirol relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the 
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the 
purpose of expressing all opinion on the effectiveness of the entity s internal control. Accordingly. 'cc express no 
such opinion. An audit also ]flcltldes evaluating he appropriateness of accounting principles used and the 
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evalLiatilig the overall 
presentation of the financial sin ements. 

We believe that he audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinions. 

Opinions 

In our opinion. the financial slatellients referred to above present fairly, in afi material respects. the respective 
financial position of the governmental activities. the business-type activities, the discretely presented component 
unit. each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Onawa. Iowa as of June 30. 
2013. and lie respeclive changes iii financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then 
ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States ofAnierica. 



Other Matters 

Required Supplementary Information 

Accounting priiiciplcs generally accepted in the United States of America require that the Management's 
Discussion and Analysis, Budgelaiy Comparison Information, and Schedule of Funding Progress for tile Retiree 
Health Plan on pages 13 through 21, 59, and 60 through 63 be presented to supprement the basic financial 
statements.  Such information, although not  parr oF the basic financial statements is required by the 
Governmental Accounring Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of the financial reporting for 
placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have 
applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing 
standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about 
the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with managements 
responseslo our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the 
basic financial statemcnts. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the 
limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 

Oilier Infornwtwn 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively 
comprise the City of Onawa, Iowa's basic financial statements. The introductory section. combining and 
individual nonniajor fund financial statements, and statistical section ace presented for purposes of additional 
analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. We also have previously audited, in 
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, the City of Onawa, Iowa's 
basic financial statements For the nine years ended June 30, 2012, which are not presented with the accompanying 
financial statements and we expressed unmodified opinions on the respective financial statements of the 
governmental activities, the business-type activities, the discretely presented component unit, each major fund, 
and the aggregate remaining fund information. Those audits were conducted for the purpose of fonning opinions 
on the financial statements that collectively comprise the City of Onawa, Iowa's basic financial statements as a 
whole. 

The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements arc the responsibility of management and were 
derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial 
statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic 
financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information 
directly to tile underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financia] statements or to the basic 
financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally 
accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the combining and individual nonmajor hind financial 
statements are fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole. 

The introductory and statistical sections have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of 
the basic financial statements and, according'y, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on them. 

Other Reporting Required by Government Au&!Tng Standards 

in accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated December 9, 2013, on 
our consideration of the City of Onawa, Iowa's internal control over financial repoiling and on our tests of its 
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regularions, contracts and grant agreements and other matters. The 
purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control ocr financial reporting and 
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial 
reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government 
Auditing Standards in considering City of Onawa. Iowa's internal control ovcr financial reporting and 
coin plia nce. 

y. - AC 
Certified Public Accountants 

Sioux City. Iowa 
December 9. 2013 
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Management Discussion and Analysis 

June 30, 2013 

This discussion and analysis of the City of Onawa financial performance provides an overview of the 
City's financial activities for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2013 We encourage the readers to consider 
the information presented here in conjunction with the additional inforrnaUon furnished in our letter of 
transmittal on page 1 and the City's financial statements that follow this report. 

Financial Highughts. 

> The assets of the City of Onawa exceeded liabilities at June 30, 2013 !  by $16405426. Of this 
amount !  $4897677 is unrestricted and may be used to meet the governments ongoing 
obligations to citizens and creditors. 

> The City's net position increased by 267% or $427,402 during the year. Of this amount, the net 
position of our Governmental Activities increased $348,532 and the net position of our Business-
Type Activities increased $78,870. 

> The largest factors in the increase in net position were the increase in cash and investments of 
$813,008, decrease in General Obligation Bonds of $160,000, decrease in Revenue Bonds of 
$58,000, decrease in taxes and other receivables of $67,018, a decrease in WIMECA 
investments of $62,355 and a decrease in infrastructure !  property and equipment of $492,609. 

> The City's long-term debt decreased due to the scheduled retirement of long-term debt of 
$160,000 of General Obligation Bonds and $58,000 of Revenue Bonds Outstanding General 
Obligation debt totals $1 ,280,00ft Outstanding water revenue bond debt totals $1445000. 

USING THIS ANNUAL REPORT 

The annual report consists of a series of financial statements and other information, as follows 

> Management's Discussion and Analysis introduces the basic financial statements and provides 
an analytical overview of the 

Citys 
 financial activities. 

>  Government-wide Financial Statements consist of a Statement of Net Position and a Statement of 
Activities. These provide information about the activities of the City of Onawa as a whole and 
present an overall view of the City's finances. 

,-  The Fund Financial Statements tell how governmental services were financed in the short term as 
well as what remains for future spending. Fund Financial Statements report the City of Onawa's 
operations in more detail than the government-wide statements by providing information about 
the most signifcant funds. 

> Notes to Financial Statements provide additional information essential to a full understanding of 
the data provided in the basic financial statements. 

> Required Supplementary Information further explains and supports the financial statements with a 
comparison of the City's budget for the year. 

Other Supplementary Information provides detailed information about the nonmajor governmental 
funds. 

REPORTING THE CITY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Government-wide Financial Statements 

The government-wide statements report information about the City as a whole using accounting methods 
similar to those used by private-sector companies. The Statement of Net Position includes all of the 
government's assets and liabilities. All of the current year's revenues and expenses are accounted for in 
the Statement of Activities, regardless of when cash is received or paid. 

One of the most important questions asked about the City's finances is "/5 the City of Onawa in a better 
financial position at the end of this fiscal year, compared to last year?" The Statement of Net Posftion and 
the Statement of Activities report information about the City as a whole and about its activities in a way 
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that helps answer this question. These statements include all assets and liabilities using the accrual 
basis of accounting, which is very similar to the method of accounting used by most private-sector 
companies. These two statements report the City's net position, which is the difference between assets 
and liabilities, as one way to measure the City's financial health, or financial position. Over time. 
increases or decreases in the City's net position are one indicator of whether its financial health s 
improving or deteriorating. Additional factors, such as changes in the City's property tax base and sales 
tax collections and condition of the City's infrastructure, are also important in making this determination. 

In the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities, we have divided the City into three kinds 
of activities: 

> Governmental Activities - Most of the City's basic services are reported here, such as police, 
fire, public works and parks departments, and general administration. Property taxes and state 
and federal grants finance most of these activities. 

) Business-Type Activities - The City charges fees to customers to cover the cost of these 
services. Included here are the City electrical, water and sewer. 

> Component Unit - The activity of the Onawa Library Advocates Foundation is included here. 

REPORTING THE CITY'S MOST SIGNIFICANT FUNDS 

Fund Financial Statements 

The fund financial statements provide detailed information about the most significant funds - not the City 
as a whole. Some funds are required to be established by State law or by bond requirements. The City 
Council also established funds to control and manage money for particular purposes (such as 
construction projects) and to show that it is properly using certain revenues (such as Sales Tax 
Revenues). The City has the following types of funds: 

Governmental Funds - Most of the City's basic services are included in Governmental Funds !  
which focus on how money moves into and out of these funds and the balances left at year-end 
that are available for spending. These funds are reported using the "modified accrual basis" of 
accounting, which measures cash and all other financial assets that can readily be converted to 
cash. The Governmental Fund Statements provide a detailed short-term view of the City's 
general governmental operations and basic services t provides. Governmental Fund information 
helps determine whether there are more or fewer financial resources that can be spent in the 
near future to finance City programs. We describe the relationship between Governmental 
Activities (reported in the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities) and 
Governmental Funds in a reconciliation following each Governmental Fund financial statement. 

) Proprietary Funds - When the City charges customers for the service it provides, these services 
are genera'ly reported in Proprietary Funds. Proprietary Funds are reported in the same way that 
all activities are reported in the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities. The 
major difference between the Proprietary Funds report and the Business-Type Activities we report 
in the government-wide statements is the detail and additional information, such as cash flows, 
provided in the Proprietary Funds report 

THE CITY AS A WHOLE 

As stated earlier !  net posWon may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government's financial 
position. The largest part of the City's net position reflects its investment in capital assets (land, buildings 
and improvements, and equipment), less any related debt used to acquire those assets that are still 
outstanding. The City uses these capital assets to provide services to citizens; consequently, these 
assets are not available for future spending. Although the City's investment in its capital assets is 
reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must be 
provided from the other sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these 
liabilities. 
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The following comparative chart shows the changes in net posrtion for the years ended June 30, 2013 
and 2012. 

General Governmental 
Activities Business-Type Activities TotaL 

2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 

Current and OtherAssets $3417665 $2920525 $4132743 $3930259 $ 7550408 $ 6850.184 
Capital Assets 8057,167 8350358 5187,492 5,386910 13244,659 13737266 
Total Assets 11474,832 1,270,883 9,320235 9,317169 20795,067 20588,052 

Long-Term Debt Outstanding 1,280,000 1 440000 1 445.000 1 503,000 2,725000 2943,000 
Other Liabilities 1,296,811 I 281.394 367.830 385634 1 664,641 1 661,028 
Total Liabilities 2576,811 2721,394 1 812830 1,888,634 4389,641 4610.028 

Net Position 

Net Investment of Capital 
Assets 
Restricted 
Unrestricted 

8898,021 8,549,489 7,507,405 7,428535 16405,426 15,978,024 

6,815,617 6,953,557 3758,205 3,900,500 10,573822 10,854,057 
933,927 854,833 - - 933927 854,833 

1 148.477 741,099 3,749,200 3,528035 4,897,677 4,269,134 

Total Net Position $8,898,021 $8,549,489 $7507405 $7,428,535 $16,405,426 $15,978,024 

This summary reflects an increase of 4.38% for the Governmental Acflvities and an increase of 1.06% in 
the Business-Type Activities. The TotaF Net Position increased by 2.67%. 

15 



Total revenue reported in Fiscal 2013 was $6038519. The following table breaks down revenues 
collected for General Governmental Activities and Business-Type Activibes for Fiscal Year 2013 and 
2012. 

General Governmenlal 
Activities Business-Type Activities Totai 

Revenue Source 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 
Program Revenues: 

Charges for Services $ 137,602 $ 123.906 53,719,993 $3,240,190 $3,857,795  $3,364,096 
Operating Grants and 

Contributions 381612 339,066 - - 381812 339,068 
Capital Grants and 

Contributions - 333,580 - - - 333,560 
Total Program Revenues 519614 796554 3,719993 3240190 4,239607 4036,744 

General Revenues & 
Interfund Transfers: 

PropertyTaxes 1,134634 1 043,148 - - 1.134,834 1,043148 
Local Option Sales Tax 236,657 248,369 - - 236657 248369 
Interest 14407 22,852 676 2.850 15.063 25702 
General lnter9overnmentai 
Revenues 43,941 98.795 - 316.758 43,941 415,553 
Sale of Merchandise - - 16761 21.446 18,761 21,446 
Payment in Lieu of Taxes 119.526 116.200 - - 119,526 116,200 
Miscellaneous 92,270 293,870 136190 95,334 228,460 389,204 
Total General Revenues 

before Interfund Transfers & 
Activity in Endowment Fund 1.641.635 1823,234 155.627 436,388 1797,262 2,259,622 

Activity in Nonexpendable 
Endowment Funds: 
Interest 600 1,738 - - 600 1 736 
Contributions 1.050 1,050 - - 1 050 1 050 
Less: Transfers to 

General Fund (1,053) (1,954) - - (1 053) (1,954) 
Net Activity in 
Nonexpendable 
Endowment Funds 597 634 - - 597 634 

Total General Revenues 
before Interfund Transfers 1.642,232 1.624.068 155,627 436,388 1.797,859 2,260,456 

Interfund Transfers: 
From Nonexpendable 
Endowment Funds 1.053 1.954 - - 1,053 1,954 

From Business-Type 
Activities 12000 12.000 (12,000) (12,000) - - 

Total Interind Transters 13,053 13,954 (12,000) (12,000) 1 053 1,954 
Total General Revenues & 

Interfund Transfers 1,655,285 1.838.022 143,627 424,388 1,796,912 2,262,410 
Total Revenues & 

Interfund Transfers $2,174,899  $2,634,576 $3,863,620 $3,664,578 $6038519 $6299154 
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Program revenues totaled $4239607 for fiscal year 2013. Governmental Activities provided $519614 
and Business-Type Activities provided $3719993. Revenue coUected for Charges for Services during 
fiscal year 2013 was $3857795, accounting for 91% of the total program revenues. 

General Revenues for fiscal year 2013 totaled $1798912. Governmental Activities provided $1655285 
and Business-Type Activities provided $143627. Property Tax Revenues for fiscal year 2013 totaled 
$1,134,834. accounting for 69% of General Governmental Revenues. 

Expenses for fiscal year2Ol3 totaled $5,611,117. Expenses for General Governmental Activities totaled 
$1,826,367, accounting for 33% of total expenses. Business-Type Activity expenses totaled $3784750, 
for 67% of the total. 

The following table shows total expenses by Function/Program for Fiscal Years 2013 and 2012. 

Program Level 
Public Safety 
Public Works 
Culture and Recreation 
Community and Economic 
Development 

General Government 
Debt Servi 
Electric System 
Water System 
Sewer System 
Total Expenses 

General Governmental 
Activities Business-Type Activities Total 

2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 
$ 568.167 $ 594,434 $ 568,187 $ 594,434 

305,948 294261 305,948 294,261 
563,787 603,589 563,787 603,589 

82,861 94,352 - - 82,861 94,352 
253,949 372,720 - - 253949 372,720 

31,635 70,453 - - 31,635 70,453 
- - 2,801978 2,704,222 2801,978 2,704,222 
- - 452,160 474,458 452,160 474,458 
- - 530,612 584,344 530,612 584,344 

$1,826,367 $2,029,809 $3,784,750 $3,763,024 $5,611,117 $5,792,833 

The following table shows the activities included within each program level: 

Program Level Activity 
Public Safety . .......................................................... Individual & Community Protection, Physical Health 
Public Works . .......................................................... Roadway Construction, Airport Operalions, Street 

Lighting, Transportation Services 
Culture and Recreation ........................................... Education & Culture, Leisure Time Opportunities 
Community and Economic Development . .............. Economic Development, Community Beautification, 

Planning & Zoning 
General Government ....................................... Administration, Support Services 
Debt Service . . ............................................... Payment of Interest 
Electric System .............................................. Operation of Electrical System 
Sewer System . . . . . . . ....................................... Operation of the Waste Water Treatment 

Plant/Collection System 
Water System ...................................................... Operation of Water Treatment Plant/Supply 

Disthbution System 
Internal Service ...................................................... Payment of Risk Insurance and I-1ealth Insurance 

Deductible 
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Governmental Activities 

To aid in the understanding of the Statement of Activities, some additional explanation is given. Of 
particular interest is the format that is significantly different than a typical Statement of Revenues, 
Expenses and Changes in Fund Balance. Please note that the expenses are listed in the first column, 
with revenues from that particular program reported to the right. The result is a Net (Expense) Revenue 
calculation. This format highlights the respective financial burden that each of the functions place on the 
taxpayers. For example, for Culture and Recreation, the City spent $563,787 and received $105703 in 
revenue, thus leaving a cost to the taxpayer of $458084 to be funded by various methods. The format 
also identifies how much each function draws from general revenues or is self-financing through fees or 
grants. Some of the individual line item revenues reported for each function are: 

Taxes Fines and Forfeits 
Special Assessments Contributions 
Licenses and Permits Refunds/Reimbursements 
Intergovernmental Revenue Grants 
Charges for Services 

The total cost of governmental activity this year was $1,826,367. Of these costs, $137,802 was paid by 
those who directly benefited from the programs. Costs paid by other governments and organizations that 
subsidized certain programs with grants and contributions were $381812, leaving a Net Expense of 
$1306753 for Governmental Activities. These expenses of $1306753 were covered with tax revenues, 
interest and other general revenues. The Statement of Activities in the financial statements provides 
further detail. The Net (Expense) Revenue by Governmental Activity is shown in the following table: 

FunctionslPrograms Net (Expense) Revenue 

Governmental Activities: 6130/2013 6/30/2012 

Public Safety $ (554622) $ (220,575) 

Public Works 28083 (9127) 

Culture and Recreation (458084) (506,553) 

Community and Economic Development (82861) (82,355) 

General Government (207,634) (344,192) 

Debt Service (31,635) (70,453) 

Total Net (Expense) Revenue 

Governmental Activities (1,306,753) (1233255) 

General Revenues 1,643285 1,826,022 
Excess of Revenues over Expenses 

Before Transfers in 336532 592767 

Transfers In 12,000 12,000 

Change in Net Position $  348532 $ 604,767 

Total resources available during the year to finance governmental operations were $10,724,388, 
consisting of Net Position at July 1, 2012 of $8,549,489, Program Revenues of $519,614 and General 
Revenues of $1655285. Total Governmental Activities during the year expended $1,826,367; thus, Net 
Position increased by $348,532 to $8,898,021. 
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Business-Type Activities 

Business-Type Activities increased the City's net position by $78870. 

The cost of all Proprietary Activities this year was $3,784,750. As shown in the Statement of Activities, 
the amounts paid by users of the systems were $3,719,993, resulting in total Net Expenses for Business 
Type Activities of $64,757. The Net (Expense) Revenue by Business Type Activity is shown in the 
following table: 

2013 Net 2012 Net 
(Expense) (Expense) 

Business-Type Activities Revenue Revenue 
Electric System $ (164750) $ (519,629) 
Water System 5,153 ( 54,041) 
Sewer System 94,840 50836 

Total Net (Expense) Revenue 
Business-Type Activities ( 64757) (522834) 

Non-Operating Revenues 155,627 436,388 
Change in Net Position 90780 (86 446) Before Transfers 
Transfers Out (12,000) (12,000) 
Change in Net Position $ 78870 $ (98446) 

Total resources available during the year to finance Proprietary Fund activities were $11,292,155 
consisting of Net Position at July 1, 2012 of $7,428,535, Program Revenues of $3719993 and General 
Revenues of $143,627. Total Proprietary Fund Activities during the year expended $3,784,750; thus Net 
Position increased by $78,870 to $7,507,405. 

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE CITY'S FUNDS 

As noted earlier, the City uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-
related legal requirements. The focus of the City's governmental funds is to provide information on near-
term inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful an assessing 
financing requirements. Unreserved fund balance may serve as a useful measure of a government's net 
resources available for spending at the end of a fiscal year. The City's Governmental Funds reported 
combined ending fund balances of $1,884,941. The combined Governmental Funds balance increased 
$461,233 from the prior year. 

The General Fund is the primary operating fund of the City. During the year, revenues exceeded 
expenditures in the General Fund by $112,933. The Tax Increment Financing fund balances increased 
$220,365 due to more taxes collected than expenditures from the TIF district and transfers to debt service 
fund for retirement of TIF debt. The Road Use Tax fund balances increased $94046 due to revenues 
exceeding expenditures. The Local Option Sales Tax fund balances increased by $38,807 due to 
accumulation of funds for future infrastructure expenditures. Debt Service Funds saw very minimal 
changes during the year naintaining a fund balance consistent with recent years. 
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GENERAL FUND BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS 

The fiscal year 2013 adopted General Fund Budget amount was $1,307,427. 

The following table shows the General Fund budget variances by program structure: 

Budget Actual 

Adopted (Cash Basis) Variance 
$ 541,049 $ 526091 $ ( 14,958) 

49,050 38,981 (10,069) 
522,963 478,986 (43,977) 

21,850 15,545 (  6,305) 
172515 132,428 (40,087) 

$1,307,427 $1,192,031 $ (115,396) 

ExDenditures 
Public Safety 
Public Works 
Culture and Recreation 
Community and Economic 

Development 
General Government 

Total Expenditures 

CAPITAL ASSETS 

The City's investment in capital assets, including and, buildings and improvements and equipment 
represents the value of the resources utilized to provide services to our citizens. The investment in 
capital assets as of June 30, 2013, was $10,573,822 (net of accumulated depreciation and outstanding 
financings), 

The gross additions to capital assets for Fiscal Years 2013 and 2012 are as follows: 

Construction in 
Progress 

Improvements - Other 
than Buildings 

Equipment 
Infrastructure 
Total Additions 

General Governmental 
Activities Business-Type Activities Totals 

2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 

$ 55,262 $668,060 $ -  $137,829 $ 55,262 $ 805889 

21,698 11146 15012 23626 36,710 34,772 
72,367 106541 38129 42945 110,496 149,486 

$149,327 $815,747 $ 53,141 $204,400 $ 202468 $1,020,147 

Construction in Progress for governmental activities consisted of costs associated with the capital projects 
in the Public Works and Public Safety Programs. 

See Note 6 to the financial statements for more information on the City's capital assets. 

DEBT ADMINISTRATION 

At year-end the City had $2,725,000 of debt outstanding. This is a decrease of $218000 from the prior 
year due to the retirement of $58,000 in State Revolving Funds, Revenue Notes, and the retirement of 
$160,000 in General Obligation Bonds. 

Debt administration is on track, with 100% of all City debt repaid within the next 12 years. This rapid 
repayment, when used with TIF, has allowed the City to maintain our good rating. This reflects well on 
our community. 
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The City continues to operate well under State debt capacity Rmitations. The State limits the amount at 
General Obligation Debt outstanding to 5°/n of the assessed value of all taxable property in the 
comniunity Thus, our debt capacity is $5360678. Wfth outstanding General Obligation Debt applicable 
to this limit of $1280000, we are utilizing less than 24% of this limit. More detailed information on debt 
administration is provided in Note 7 of the financial statements. 

ECONOMIC FACTORS 

The City of Onawa continues to work hard to maintain a positive approach to growth and development. 
Continued improvement in downtown facade and the addition to the library continues to make a positive 
effect on the City's image. 

The General Fund is projected to end fiscal 2014 with a fund balance of approximately $1,625,705, a 
13.0% decrease from fiscal 2013. 

The tax levy rates per $1,000 of taxable valuation for fiscal 2014 are provided below: 

General Levy 
Civic Center Levy 
Library Levy 
Debt Service levy 
Emergency 
FICA, IPERS & Employee Benefits 
Tort Liability levy 

Total 

CONTACTING THE CITY'S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT 

$ 8.10000 
13500 

.27000 
2.64914 

27000 
1.5 1954 
.89475 

$1383843 

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers and investors and creditors 
with a general overview of the City's finances and to demonstrate the City's accountability for the money it 
receives. If you have questions about this report or need additional financial information, contact the 
Finance Department at 71 2-433-1181. 
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CITY OF OMAWA. IOWA 
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 
JUNE 30, 2013 

ASSETS 
Cash aid Cash Equivalents 
Investments 
Receivables (Net, where applicable, or allowance for 

uncollectibles) 
Accounts 
Taxes 
Subsequent YearTaxes 
A,ted nterest 
Other 
Special Assessments 
Subsequent Year Special Assessments 
Internal Balances 

OLe from Olher Governments 
In ye n lanes 
Prepaid Assets 
Temporary Casri Investments for Equipment 
Investment in WIMECA 
Restricted Mats - Cash 
Unwwctzed Baid Issue Cost 
Unamoilized Bc*id DIs unt 
Unnrllzed Loan Fees 
Lard 
Constwon in Progress 
Infrastructure, Properly and Equipment, Net 

0* Actumulalea Depredation 
Total Assets 

LIABILITIES 
Current Liabililies 

Aounls Payable 
Acciijed Wages and BeneFits 
Accrued Expenses 
Accrued Interest Payable 
Deferred Revenue - Subsequent Year Taxes 
Notes Payable due wiThin one year 
Customer Deposits 
Compensated Absences due within one year 

Total Curmnt Liabist'es 

Non-Current Lrab'lFt'es. 
Notes Payable due In more than one year 
Otner Postemployrnent Benefits 
Compensated Absences due in more than one year 

Total Non-Current tiabililies 
Total Liabilities 

NET POSITION 
Net Investment in Capital Assets 
Restric d ftc 

Specific Revenues: 
Local Opton Sales Tax Purposes 
Road Use Tax Purposes 
I Jobs 

Endowments 
Nonexpendable 

Un reslricted 
Total Net Position  

Primary Government Component Unit 
Onawa Library 

Governmental Business-Type Advocates 
Activities Activities Total Foundation 

$ 854871 $ 312,013 $ 1176884 $ 14,259 
I . 048,068 632,925 1.680.993 21.510 

- 344,697 344,897 
12,901 - 12,901 

1 149,070 - 1,149,070 
6,021 - 6,021 

22,265 18,024 38,289 
48,808 - 48,808 
74,530 - 74,530 

(499,481) 499481 - 
55,045 - 55,045 

- 274 539 274,539 
58,844 25753 84,597 

538,273 100,858 539,131 
- 1,844,848 1,844,848 
- 65.892 85,892 

32,218 - 32,218 
6,232 - 6,232 

- 15,713 15,713 
417,239 9,050 428,289 

439 - 439 

7,639,489 5,178,442 12,617,931 - 
11,474,832 9.320,235 20,795,067 35,759 

60,057 21995 279,952 - 
31.849 25,193 57,042 

493 2, 0 3,353 - 
2,129 3,813 5,742 - 

1,149,070 - 1.149,070 - 
165,000 60,000 225,000 - 

- 85,892 85,892 - 
11.494 12,595 24,089 - 

1.420.092 390,046 1,810.140 - 

1.115.000 1,385,000 2.500,000 - 
7,238 - 7,238 - 

34,481 37182 72263 - 
1,156,719 1,422182 2,579,501 - 
2,576811 1.512,830 4,389.841 - 

8,815,617 3,758205 10.573,822 

763,563 - 783,563 
15,126 - 15,126 
29,202 - 29,202 

126,036 - 126036 
1.148.477 3,749,200 4.897,677 35,789 
p,aso021 $ 7.507,405 $  15,405,426 $ 35,769 

See Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements 
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CITY OF ONAWA, IOWA 
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 

Program Revenues 

Operating 
Charges for Grants and 

F U flC Ii onaiP rograms Expenses Services Contributions 

Primary Government: 
Governmental Activities, 

Public Safety $ 588187 $ 6,670 $ 26.895 
PublioWorks $05948 1.440 332,591 
Culture and Recreation 563781 83,377 22,326 
Conmun,ty and Economic Development 82861 - - 
General Government 253949 46,315 - 
DebtService 31635 - - 

Total Governmental Activities 1 625367 1 37M02 381.812 

Business-Type Activities: 
ElecWc System 
Water System 
Sewer System 

Total Business-Type Acuvities 

Total Primary Government 

Component Unit: 
Onawa Library Advocates Foundalion 

2801978 2637.228 - 
452160 457,313 - 
530,612 625,452 - 

3784750 3,719,993 - 

5,611117 3,857,795 381.812 

$ - $ - $ 

General Revenues: 
Property Taxes 
Local Opon Sales Tax 
Interest 
General Intergovernmental Revenues 
Sale of Merchandise 
Payment in Lieu of Taxes 
Miscellaneous 
Contributions 

Interfund Transfers 
Total General Revenues and Intertund Transfers 
Change in Net Position 

Net Position - Beginning 
Net Position - Ending 

See Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements 
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Net (Expense) Revenue 
and Changes in Net Position 

Component 
Primary Government Unit 

Governmental Business-Type Onawa Librwy 
Activities Activities Total Advocates Foundation 

$ (554,622) $ 
28,083 

(458 084) 
(82861) 

(207634) 
(31.6 35) 

(1306753) 

$ (554,622) $ 
28083 

(458,084) 
(82861) 

(207634) 
(31 635) 

(1,306753) 

- (164,750) (164,750) 
- 5,153 5 ! 1 53 
- 94,640 94840 
- (64,757) (64757) 

(1 306753) (64.757) (1,371,510) 

1,134,834 
236,657 

15,007 
43,941 

119,526 
92270 

I 050 
12 !  000 

1,655285 
348532 

8549489 
$ 8898021 

- 1,134,834 
- 235,657 

676 15,683 
- 43,941 

18,761 18,761 
- 119,526 

136190 228,460 
- 1.050 

(12 ! 000) - 
143627 1,798,912 
78670 427,402 

7428,535 15,978,024 
$ 7,507,405 $ 16,405426 

516 

5,150 

5666 
5666 

30103 
$ 35769 
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CITY OF ONAWA, IOWA 
BALAICE SHEET 
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
JUNE 0. 2013 

Local 
Road Use Option 

General hF Tax Sales Tax 
Assets 

Cash and Pools Inveshnents 
Investments 
Receivables (Net, where appbcable, of allowance 

for uncolleclibles) 
Taxes 
Subsequent Year Taxes 
Accrued Interest 
Oilier 
Specal Assessments 
Subsequenl Year Spedal Assessments 

Internal Balances 
Due from Other Governmental Agencies 
Temporary Cash Investments Designated for Equipment 

Total Assets 

Liabilities and Fund Balances 
Liabilities: 

Accounts Payable 
Accrued Wages qnd Compensated Absences 
Accrjed Expenditures 
lntema Balances 
Deferred Revenue - Subsequent Year Taxes 
Deferred Revenue - subsequent Year Assessments 

Total Liabilities 

Fund Balances: 
Nonspendable: 

Perpetual Care 
Endowment 

Spendable: 
Restrided For: 

Spedal Revenue Funds 
Assi9ned For: 

Capital Projects 
Unassigned 
Total Fund Balances (Deficits) 

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances 

664786 33,070 
928.568 

10,050 379 
729,949 228,072 

5,174 - 
21437 - 178 
46,474 - 
53517 - 

- - - 700000 
- - 24552 30493 

526,177 - 12,096 - 
2,988,132 228,451 36,826 763.563 

54,344 2,901 2,812 - 
26,035 - 5814 - 

493 - - - 
41,072 7,863 13,074 - 

729,949 228,072 - - 
53517 - - - 

905,410 238836 21,700 - 

15,126 763,563 

2,080.722 (10,385) - - 
2080722 (10,385) 15,126 763,563 

$ 2,986,132 $ 228,451 36,826 $ 763,563 

See Accompanyr Notes to Financial Statiients 
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Fire 2011 Nonmajor Total 
Debt Station Street Governmental Governmental 

Sei-vice Project Project Funds Funds 

$ 48,234 $ 746,090 
119,500 1,048,068 

2472 - - - 12,901 
191,049 - - - 1,149,070 

- - 587 260 6.021 
- - - - 21,615 
- - 2,334 - 48,808 
- - 21,013 74,530 
- - - - 700.000 
- - - - 55,045 
- - - - 538,273 

193,521 - 23,934 167,994 4,400,421 

• - - 60,057 
- - - - 31,849 
- - - - 493 

12,448 450,782 652535 21 !707 1,199,481 
191,049 - - - 1,149,070 

- - 21,013 - 74530 
203497 450782 673,548 21707 2,515,480 

93.016 93,016 
33,020 33,020 

29,202 607,691 

- - - 12,756 12,756 
9,976) (450,782) (849,614) (21.707) 938,258 

(9.976) (450.782) (649614) 146.287 1,864,941 
$ 193,521 $ -  $ 23,934 $ 167994 $ 4,400,421 
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CITY OF ONAWA. IOWA 
RECONCILIATION OF THE BALANCE SHEET OF GOVERMMENTAL FUNDS 

TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 

Amounts reported for Governmental Activies in the Statement of Net Position are different because: 

Total Fund Balances - Governmental Funds (page 26) $ 

Infrastructure, property, and equipment used in governmental activities are not financial 
resources and, therefore, are not reported in the funds. 

Subsequent year assessments are not available to pay for current period expenditures 
and are deferred in the funds, 

Internal service fund used by management to fund and maintain the City's health 
insurance deductible accountand is included in the statement of net position 

nternal service fund used by nanagen,ent to fund and maintain the City's deductible 
account and is included n the statement of net position. 

Accajed interest expense does not require the use of current financial resources and is 
not reported in the governmental funds. 

Bond issue costs and Bond Discounts are reported in the governmental activities but are 
not reported in the funds as they do not provide current economic resourcet 

Prepaid expenses are reported in the governmental activities but are not reported in the 
funds as they do not provide current economic resources. 

The tOUOWing long-term liabi'ities are not due and payab'e in the current period and, 
therefore, are not reported in the funds 

Long-term Debt 
Other Postemployment Benefits Payable 
Compensated Absences Payable 

1,884,941 

8,057167 

74,530 

978 

118453 

(2,129) 

38,450 

56,844 

(1,280, 000) 
(7,238) 

(45,976) 

Total Net Position - Governmental Activities (page 22) $ 8.898.021 

See Accompanying Notes to Financiar Statements 
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CITY OF ONAWA, IOWA 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013 

Local 
Road Use Option 

Revenues: 
Ta Xe S 

Special Assessments 
Licenses and Permits 
ntergovernmental Revenue 

Charges for Services 
Fines and Forfeits 
Contributions 
Interest 
Payment in Lieu of Taxes 
Miscellaneous 

Total Revenue 

Expenditures 
Public Safety 
Public Works 
Culture and Recreation 
Community and Economic Development 
General Government 
Capital Projects 
Debt Service 

Principal Retirements 
Interest 

Total Expenditures 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 
over expenditures 

Other financing sources (uses): 
Transfers In 
Transfers Out 

Total other financing sources (uses) 

Net Change in Fund Balances 

Fund Balances (Deficit) Beginning of Year 

Fund Balances (Deficit) End of Year 

$ 707,683 $ 253372 $ - $ - 
25,480 - - - 
15.224 - - - 
43,941 19459 290684 236,657 
81.276 - - 
10.211 - - - 
49,221 - - - 
13.820 - - - 

119.526 - - - 
72810 - 1,244 - 

1139192 272831 291928 236,657 

534,153 - 
39.118 - 197,882 

482738 - 
15!545 44,466 22850 

142,758 - 

1 214312 44,466 197882 22.850 

(75,120) 228365 94046 213.807 

188053 - 

188.053 - 

112.933 228,365 94,046 38807 

1,967,789 (238,750) (78,920) 724,756 

$  2!080,722 $ (10.385) $ 15,126 $ 763,563 

See Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements 
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Other 
Fire 2011 Nonmajor Total 

Debt Staon Street Governmental Governmental 
Service Project Project Fund. Funds 

$ 173779 $ -  $ -  $ - $  1134834 
- - 16,360 - 41640 
- - - - 15224 
- - - - 590,741 
- - - - 81,276 
- - - - 10,211 
- - - 1,050 50,271 
- - 587 600 15.007 
- - - - 119,526 
- - - - 74.054 

173,779 - 15,947 1,650 2,132,984 

- - - 534,153 
- - - - 237,000 
- - - - 482,738 
- - - - 82,861 
- - - - 142,758 
- - 15,409 439 15848 

160,000 - - - 160000 
28.393 - - - 28,393 

188,393 - 15,409 439 1,683,751 

(14.614) - 1.538 1211 449,233 

- - - - 188,053 
- - - (1,053) (176053) 
- - - (1,053) 12000 

(14614) - 1.538 158 461,233 

4,638 (450782) (651,152) 146,129 1,423708 

$ (9,976) $ (450,782) $ (649,614) $ 148,287 $ 1,884,941 
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CITY OF ONAWA. IOWA 
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,M0 CHANGES 

IN FUND BALANCES - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE GOVERNMENT-WIDE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 

Amounts reported ror Governmental Activities in the Statement of Actwites are different because. 

Net change in kind balances - total governmental funds (page 29) $ 461,233 

Governmental funds report capital outlays, including infrastnflu,e, as expenditures Howe r, in the 
Statement ol Activilies, the cost of those assets is allccated over their estimated useful Fives and reputed as 
deecJaton expense, Capital outlays were exceeded by depreciatias expense in the current year as Itllows: 

Expenditures Itr Capital Assets $ 149327 
DISPOSItIOn or Fixed Assets 57800) 
Depreciation Expense (384718) (293.191 

Special assessment revenues are deferred in the governmental funds because they are nol available to 
provide current financial resources. 11.179) 

Prepaid expenses are not reported in the governmental funds as they are riot available to provide current 
flnancial resources. 1694) 

Accnjed Interest expemse that does not require curTent financial resources 1507 

Internal service fund used by management to fund and maintain the City's health insurance deducthle 
account and Is included in the Statement of Net Poslvon. The net revenue of this internal service fund is 
reputed with govecnmwital activities 21216 

Issuance costs and bond discounts are records in the funds when new debt is issued, whereas, these 
amounts are deterred and amortized in the Statement of Activities. (4749) 

Some expenses reported in the Statement of Activities do not require tile use otcurrert financial resources 
and Iherelore. are not reports as expenditures in the govemniental kinds: 

Compensated Absences 
Other Postemploynient Benefits 

The repaynent of the principal ol bonded long-term debt Ilsurnes the current flnanc1al resources of 
governmental rwJs without affecting the nel pothion. The Statenerit of Activities does not rei1ect the 
payment of pilncipal on bonded long-term debt. The principal paid on bonds long-term debt during the 
current .ar was: 

Change in net poition of governmental activities (page 24) 

2,068 
2288 

160,000 

$ 348,532 

SeeA mpaniing Notes to Financial Statemeuts 
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188,122 
10,606 
2,833 

65 .892 
5704 

273157 

11,113 
17,113 

290,270 

2327,434 
2,973,827 

$ 5301.261 

3,618 
8,702 

27 
3613 

60000 

5477 
81437 

1.385.000 
16,429 

1,401,429 
1,482,866 

690,814 
14g,520 

$ 640394 

CITY OF ONAWA, IOWA 
COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 
PROPRIETARY FUNDS 
JUNE 30, 2013 

Business-Typo Activities 

Electric Water 
Syvem SysLern 

ASSETS 
Current Assets: 
Cash and Cash Equivaleris 
Investments 
Receivables (Net, where applicable, of allowance for 

uncollectibles) 
Accounts 
Other 
Internal Balances 

Inventories 
Prepaid Assets 
Investment in WIMECA 
Temporary Cash Investments for Equipment 

Total Current Assets 

Non-Current Assets: 
Restricted Assets - Cash 
Unamo,tized Loan Fees 
Land 
Infrasuucture, Property and Equipment, Net 
of Accumulated Depreciation 

Total Non-Current Assets 
Total Assets 

LIABILITiES 
Current Liabilities: 

Accounts Payable 
Accrued Wages 
Accrued Expenses 
Accrued Interest Payable 
Notes Payable due in less than one year 
Customer Deposits 
Compensated Absences due in less than one year 

Total Current Liabilities 

Non-Current Liabilities: 
Notes Payable due in more than one year 
Compensated Absences due in more than one year 

Total Non-Current Liabilities 
Total LiablISs 

NET POSITION 
Net Investment in Capilal Assets 
Unrestricted 

Total Net Position 

$ 130,096 71,176 
450,126 4,185 

241,366 45,497 
14,566 1,421 

199 .481 
223,337 49 ! 906 

15, 8 52 6503 
1,844,846 

78,531 8,698 
3,198,205 181,366 

65, 892 
15,713 

2327,434 2,120.161 
2.393,326 2.135,874 
5!591 .531 2.323.260 

See Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements 
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Business-Type Activities Governmental 
Activities 

Sewer Internal 
System Total Service 

$ 110,741 $ 312,013 $ 118781 
178,614 532925 - 

57.834 344,697 - 
35 16,024 850 

300 000 499,481 - 
1.296 274,539 - 
3398 25,753 - 

- 1 844,848 - 
13629 100.658 - 

665,547 4,051,138 119,431 

- 65,892 - 
- 15713 - 

9050 9,050 - 

730847 5,178,442 - 
739,897 5,269,097 - 

1 405,4-44 9,320,235 119431 

28,155 219,895 
5,885 25193 

- 2.660 
- 3,613 
- 50,000 
- 65,892 

1.414 12,595 
35.454 390,048 

- 1.385,000 
4,240 37,782 
4,240 1,422,762 

39,694 1,812,830 

739,897 3,758,205 - 
625,853 3,749.200 119,431 

$ 1 365750 $ 7,507,405 $ 119,431 
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CITY OF ONAWA, IOWA 
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION 
PROPRIETARY FUNDS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013 

Business-Type Activities 

Electric Water 

Operating Revenues' 
Charges for Seivces 

Total Operating Revenues 

Operating Expenses: 
Production 
Distribution 
Customer Accounts/Administration 
Solid Waste 
Depreciation and Amortization 
Deductibles 

Total Operating Expenses 

Operating Income (Loss) 

Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses) 
Interest Income 

Sale of Merchandise 
Equity in Net neome of WIMECA 
Annual Loan Fee 
Interest Expense 
Other Non-Operating Revenues 

Tolal Non-Operating Revenues Expenses) 

Income (Loss) before Transfers 

Transfers Out 

Change in Net Position 

Net Posdion - Beginning 

Net Position - Ending 

$ 2,637228 $ 457,313 
2,637,228 457,313 

2,182,209 97,588 
414239 199,719 

85,359 58,642 

120,171 96,211 

2,801978 462,160 

(154,750) 5,153 

483 13 

2,659 15.902 
158,148 - 

- (3,758) 
- (44,945) 

24,427 2.318 
165.917 (30.470) 

21.167 (25,317) 

(12,000) 

9.167 (25,317) 

5.292.094 865,711 

$ 5,301.261 $ 840,394 

See Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements 
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- Business-Typo Activities Governmental 
Activities 

Sewer Internal 
System Total Service 

$ 625,452 $ 3,719,993 $ 31091 
625,452 3719993 31,091 

82577 2,362374 - 
114465 728423 - 
53541 197542 - 

242.975 242975 - 
37,054 253436 - 

- - 9,845 
530,612 3,784,750 9,845 

94,840 (64,757) 21246 

1 0 676 
- 16,761 
- 158,148 

- (3.758) 
- (44.945) 
- 25.745 

180 155,627 

95020 90870 21,246 

- (12,000) - 

96,020 78,870 21246 

1.270,730 7,428,535 98185 

$ 1,365,750 $ 7,507,405 $ 119,431 
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CITY OF ONAWA, IOWA 
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
PROPRIETARY FUNDS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013 

Business-Type Activities 

Electric Water 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES: 
Cash Received from Customers 
Cash Paid to SuppFiers for Goods and Services 
Cash Paid to Employees for Services 
Other Norioperating Income 
Cash Received for Customer Deposits 

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES: 
Transfers (to) Other Funds 
Advances from (to) Other funds 

Net Cash Provided (Used)  for Noncapital Financing Activities 

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES: 
Acquisition and Construction of Capital Assets 
Loan Fees Paid 
Principal Paid on Notes and Bonds 
Interest Paid on Notes and Bonds 

Net Cash (Used) for Capital and Related Financing Activities 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES: 
Purchase of Temporary Cash Investments - Equipment 
Dividends Received 

Net Cash Provided for Investing Activities 

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Year 

Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Year 

Supplemental Disclosures: 
Noncash Investing and Financing Activities 

Reinvestment of the Earnings from WIMECA 
Reinvestment of Interest on Investments 

$ 2.635.449 $ 458.440 
(2.407,989) U40033) 

(269,49) (230597) 
37,462 20,280 

5,133 - 
564 108.090 

(12,000) - 
199,481) - 

(211,481) - 

(40,250) (12,891) 
- (3,758) 
- (58000) 
- (45090) 

(40250) (119739) 

(18000) - 
220503 - 

202,503 - 

(48664) (11,649) 

244,652 82,825 

$ 195,988 $ 71,176 

$ 156,148 $ - 
645 36 

$ 158793 $ 36 

See Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements 
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Business-Type Activities Governmental 
Activities 

Sewer Internal 
System Total Service 

$ 628.055 $ 3719,944 
(340438) (2,888.460) 
(152,926) (653014) 

- 57.742 
__________________ 5,133 

132.691 241345 

- (12.000) 
(86798) (286,279) 
(86798) (296279)  

$ 31041 
(10, 039) 

21,002 

97,779 
97, 779 

(53.141) 
(3758) 

(58,000) 
(45 090) 

(159, 9 89) 

- (18000) 
- 220503 

- 202,503 

45,893 (14420) 118,781 

64848 392,325 

S 110,741 $ 377,905 $ 118761 

$ - $ 158148 
216 897 

$ 216 $ 159.045 
(Continued) 
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CITY OF ONAWA, IOWA 
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS Continued) 
PROPRIETARY FUNDS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013 

Business-Type Activities 

Reconciliation of Operating Income (Loss) to Nel 
Cash Provided by Operating Activities 

Operating Income (Lass) 

Adjustments to Reconcile Net Operating Income (Loss) to 
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities: 

Depreciation and Amortization 
Other Non-Operating Income 
(Increase) Decrease in Assets. 

Accounts Receivable 
Other Receivable 
Prepaid Expenses 
Inventories 

Increase (Decrease) in Liabilities. 
Accounts Payable 
Accrued Wages and Compensated Absences 
Accrued Expenses 
Customer Deposits 

Total Adjustments 
Net Cash Provided by Operating Act,vpties  

Electric Water 
System System 

(164.750) $ 5,153 

120.171 96,211 
27286 18,220 

(1,180) 1,127 
10111 2,060 

(100) 55 
23,690 (10,817) 

(21,531) (6,001) 
2,292 2077 

(24) 4 
5133 - 

165,314 102931 
S 564 $ 108090 

See Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements 
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Business-Type Activities Governmental 
Activities 

Sewer nternal 
System Tothi Service 

$ 94,840 

37. 054 

422 
181 
116 

(313) 

(406) 
797 

37,851 
$ 132691 

(64.757) 

253436 
45506 

(231) 
12, 418 

72 
12, 5 80 

(27,938) 
5166 

(20) 
5!133 

306,102 
$ 241,345 

$ 21,248 

(50) 

(194) 

(244) 
$ 21002 



CFTY OF ONAWA, IOWA 
Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30,2013 

Note 1 -  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

The City  of Onawa, Iowa is a pohilcal subdivision of the State of Iowa located in Monona County, and was 
incorporated in 1859, and operates under the Home Rule Provisions of the Constitution of Iowa. The City 
operates under a Mayor-Council form ofgovernmentwith an appointed administrator and finance directorand 
administers the following programs as authorized by its charter: public safety, public works, culture and 
recreaUon, community and economic development and general government services. The City also has 
municipal electric, water and sewer utility systems, which are governed by the City Council. 

The City's financial statements are prepared in accordance with US. generallyaccepted accounfing principles 
(GAAP) as prescribed by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board. 

A. Reporting Entity 

For financial reporting purposes, the City of Onawa, Iowa, has included all funds, organizations, agencies! 
boards, commissions and authorities. The City has also considered all potential componentunitsfor which 
it is financially accountable, and other organizations for which the nature and significance of their 
relationship with the City are such that exclusion would cause the City's financial statements to be 
misleading or incomplete. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board has set forth criteria to be 
considered in determining financial accountability. These criteria include appointing a voting majorityof an 
organizaflon's governing body, and (1) the abilityof the City to impose its will on that organization or(2) the 
potential for the organization to provide specific benefits to, or impose specific financial burdens on the City. 

These financial statements present the City of Onawa (the primary government) and its component unit. 
The component unit discussed below is included in the City's reporting entity because of the significance of 
its operations or financial relationship with the City. 

Discretely Presented Component Unit - Onawa Library Advocates Foundation (Foundation) was 
established under the Iowa Non-Profit Corporation Act, Chapter 504A of the Code of Iowa, to promote the 
Cnawa Public Library. The Foundationsfinancial data is reported in a separate column to emphasizethat 
it is legally separate from the City, but is financially accountable to the City. 

Jointly Governed Organizations - The City also participates in several jointly governed organizations for 
which the City snot financiafly accountable or that the nature and significance of the relationship with the 
City are such that exclusion does not cause the City's financial statements to be misleading or incomplete. 
City officials are members of the following Boards and Commissions: Monona County Assessors 
Conference Board, Monona County Emergency Management Commission !  Monona CountyJoint EQi 1 
Service Board, and Monona County Landfill Commission. 

B. Basic Financial Statements-Government-Wide Statements 

The City's basicfinancial statements include both government-wide (reporbng the Cityas a whole) and ftind 
financial statements (reporting the City's major funds). Both the government-wide and fund financial 
statements categorize primary aciVes as either governmental or business-type. The City's general, 
special revenue, debt service, capital projects and permanent funds are classified as governmental 
actrvitres. 
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CITY OF ONAWA. IOWA 
Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2013 

Note I -  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - (Continued) 

In the government-wide Statement of Net Fosition, both the governmental and business-type activities 
columns (a) are presented on a consolidated basis by column, and (b) are reported on a full accrual. 
economic resource basis, which recognizes all long-term assets and receivablesas well as long-term debt 
and obligations. The City's net position is reported in three parts: net investment in capital assets; reshicted 
net position; and unrestricted net position. The City first uses restricted resources to finance qualifying 
activities. 

The Government-wide Statement of Activities reports both the gross and net cost of each of the City's 
functions (public safety, public works, culture and recreation, community and economic development, 
general government, etc.) and business-type activities. The functions are also supported by general 
government expenses (including depreciation) by related program revenue, operathg grants, and capital 
grants. Program revenue must be directly associated with the function or a business-type activity 
Operating grants include operating-specific and discretionary (either operating or capital) grants while the 
capital grants column reflects capital-specific grants. 

As a general rule, the effect of interfund activityhas been eliminated from the government-wide financial 
statements. The City does not allocate indirect costs. 

This government-wide focus is more on the sustainabilhty of the Cityasan enfityand the change in the Cit)'s 
net position resulting from the current year activities. 

C. Fund Accounting 

The accounts of the Cityare organized on the basis of funds, each of which is considered to be a separate 
accounting entity. The operations of each fund are accounted for by a separate set of self-balancing 
accounts that comprise its assets, iabilities, fund equity, revenues or receipts, and expenditures or 
expenses, as appropriate. Government resources are aflocated to. and accounted for, in individual funds 
based on the purpose for which They are to be spent and the means by which spending activities are 
controlled. 

The emphasis in fund financial statements is on the major funds in either the governmental or business-
type activities categories. GASB No. 34 sets forth minimum criteria for the determination of major funds 
The City electively added funds, as major funds, which had a specific community focus. The non-major 
funds are combined into a single column in the fund financial statements. 

The City reports the following major governmental funds: 

Governmental Fund Types - The governmental fund financial statements are reported using thecurrent 
financial resources measurement focus. This means that the focus of the governmental funds' 
measurement is upon the determination of financial position and changes in financial position (sources, 
uses and balances of financial resources) rather than upon net income. The following is a description of 
The major governmental funds of the City 

I) General Fund - The Genera! Fund is the general operating fund of the City. Itis used to account 
for arr financial resources except those required to be accounted for in another fund. The sources 
of revenue include property taxes, charges for services, fines and fees, licenses and permits, as 
well as state and federal grants The expenditures of the General Fund relate to general 
administration, police and fire protection, maintenance of pubuc streets, economic development, 
and culture and recreatioit 
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CITY OF ONAWA, IOWA 
Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30,2013 

Note 1 -  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - (Continued) 

2) Special Revenue Funds 

The TIF (Tax Incremental Financing Fund) is used to account for property taxes received to be 
expended for construction of specific projects within the TIF District. 

The Road Use Tax Fund is used to account for the operation of street maintenance and 
construction financed by allocations of state fuel taxes. 

The Local Option Sales Tax Fund is used to accountfor the collection of a 1% local option sales 
tax to be expended for industrial development, infrastructure and for property tax relief. 

3) Debt Service Fund - The Debt Service Fund is used to account for the accumulation of resources 
for, and the payment of, general long-term debt, principal !  interest! and related costs. 

4) CaDital Prolect Funds 

The Fire Station Project Fund is used to account for the cost of construction of the newfiresthflon. 

2011 and 2013 Street Project Funds are used to account for the cost of street reconstruction. 

Proprietary Fund Types - The focus of proprietaryfund measurement is upon determination of operating 
income, changes in net position, financial position, and cash flows. Operating revenues and expenses are 
distinguished from non-operating revenues and expenses. Operating revenues and expenses generally 
result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund's 
principal ongoing operations. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as non-
operating revenues and expenses. The principal operating revenues of enterprise funds are charges to 
customers for services. Operating expenses consst of cost of sales and services, adminis-aUve expenses, 
and depreciation on capital assets. The U.S. generally accepted accounting principles used are those 
applicable to similar businesses in the private sector. 

I) Enterprise Funds - Enterprise Fundsare used to accountfor operations (a) that are financed and 
operated in a manner similar to private business enterprises - where the intent of the governing 
body is that the costs (expenses, including depreciatioffi of providing goods or services to the 
general public on a continuing basis should be financed or recovered primarily through user 
charges; or (b) where the governing body has decided that periodic determination of revenues 
earned, expenses incurred, and/or net income is appropriate torcapital maintenance, public policy, 
rnanagementcontrol, accountability, or other purposes. The City maintains several business-type 
activities. The major enterprise funds are listed as follows: 

The Electric Fund is used to account for the operation and maintenance of the City's electric 
system. 

The Water Fund is used to account for the operation and maintenance of the Citys water 
system. 

The Sewer Fund is used to account for the operation and maintenance of the City's sewer 
system. 
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CITY OF ONAWA, IOWA 
Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2013 

Note 1 -  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - (Continued 

2) Internal Service Funds - Internal Service Funds are used to account for the financing of goods or 
services provided by one department or agency to other departments or agencies of the City, or to 
other governments, on a cost-recovery basis. 

The City's internal service funds are presented in the proprietary fund financial statements. 

Risk Insurance - The City operates an insurance deductible fund that accounts for all 
deductibles on insurance claims owed by the other organizational units of the City. The 
financial statements of the risk insurance internal service fund are consolidated into the 
governmental column when presented in the government-wide financial statements. To the 
extent possible, the cost of these services is reported in the appropriate functional activity and 
are not eliminated in the process of consolidation. 

Health Insurance Deductibles - The City operates a health insurance deductible fund that 
accounts for alt deductibles on employee health insurance claims owed by the other 
organizational units of the City. The financial statements of the health insurance deductible 
internal service fund are consolidated into the governmental column when presented in the 
govemment-wide financial statements. To the extent possible, the cost of these services is 
reported in the appropdate &jnctional activity and are not eliminated in the process of 
conso!idauon. 

D. Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting 

The government-wide and proprietaryfund financial statements are reported using the economic resources 
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned and 
ex4enses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Property 
tax is recognized as revenue in the year for which it is levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as 
revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been satisfied. 

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the currentfinancial resources measurement 
focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both 
measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available when they are collectible within the 
current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the City 
considers revenues to be available if they are collected within SC days after year end. 

Property tax !  local option sales tax !  intergovernmental revenues (shared revenues, grants and 
reimbursements from other governments) and interest are considered to be susceptible to accrual. All 
other revenue items are considered to be measurable and available onlywben cash is received bythe fly. 

Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred !  as under accrual accounting. However, 
principal and interest on long-term debt, claims and judgments and compensated absencesare recognized 
as expenditures only when payment is due. Capital asset acquisitions are reported as expenditures in 
governmental funds. Proceeds of general long-term debt are reported as other financing sources. 

Under terms of grant agreements, the City funds certain programs by a combination of specific cost-
reimbursement grants, categorical block grants and general revenues. Thus! when program expenses are 
incurred, there are both restricted and unrestricted net position available to finance the program. It is the 
City's policy to first apply cost-reimbursement grant resources to such programs, followed by categorical 
block grants and then by general revenues. 
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CFY OF ONAWA, IOWA 
Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30,2013 

Note I -  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - (Continued) 

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items. Operating 
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in 
connection with a proprietary fund's principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the 
City's Enterprise Funds is charges to customers for sales and services. Operating expenses for EnterprS 
Funds include the cost of sales and ser'ces, administrative expenses and depreciation on capital assets. 
All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as non-operating revenues and 
expenses. 

The City maintains its financial records on the cash basis. The financial statements of the Cityare prepared 
by making memorandum adjusting entries to the cash basis financial records 

E. Budgets 

Chapter 334, Seodon 16, of the State Code of Iowa requires the adoption of an annual budgeton or before 
March15 of each year, which becomes effective July 1 and constitutes the appropriation foreach program 
specified therein until amended. The City budget may be amended forspecifled level purposes and budget 
amendments must be prepared and adopted in the same manner as the original budget. Appropriations, 
as adopted and amended, lapse at the end of the fiscal year. 

Annuat budgets are adopted on the cash basis of accounting for all governmental funds. The Citysbudget 
is prepared on the cash basis of accounting The legal level of control (the level on which expenditures 
may not legally exceed appropriations) is the program level for all funds combined rather than at the 
individua! fund level. This level of control is at a level higher than the individual fund. It is necessary, 
therefore !  to aggregate the expenditures of governmental fund types with expenses of proprietary fund 
types on a program level basis and to compare such program totals to program budgeted totals in order to 
demonsflte legal compliance with budget. Legal budget compliance for oWes in the State of Iowa is 
applied only to expenditures. 

The Budgetarycomparison and related disclosures are reported as Required Supplementary Information. 

F. Cash and Cash Equivalents and Investments 

The City is authorized by statute to invest public funds notcurrenhly needed for operating expenses in notes, 
certificates, bonds, prime eligible bankers acceptances, certain high rated commercial paper, perfected 
repurchase agreements, or other evidences of indebtedness which are obligations of orguaranteed bythe 
United States of Mierica or any of its agencies, or in time deposits or savings accounts in deposihories 
approved by the City Council. 

1) Cash and Cash Equivalents 
Includes investments with original maturities of three months or less. 

2) Investments 
The City uses the following methods in determining the reported amounts. 

Iyn Method 
Nonnegotiable Certificates of Deposit Cost 
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Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2013 

Note I -  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - (Continued) 

G. Property Tax Receivable. Including Tax Increment Financing 

Property tax in Governmental Funds is accounted for using the modified acewal basis of accounting. 

Property tax receivable is recognized in these funds on the le' or lien date, which is the dale that the tax 
asking is certified by the City Council to the County Board of Supervisors. Currentyear delinquentproperty 
taxes receivable represents unpaid taxes from the current year. The succeeding year property tax 
receivable represents taxes certified by the City Council to be collected in the next fiscal year for the 
purposes set out in the budget for the next fiscal year. By statute, the City Council is required to certify its 
budget to the CountyAuditor by March 15 of each year for the subsequent fiscal year. However, bystatute, 
the tax asking and budget certification for the following fiscal year becomes effective on the firstdayof That 
year. Although the succeeding year property tax receivable has been recorded, the related revenue is 
deferred and will not be recognized as revenue until the year for which it is levied. 

Property tax revenue recognized in these funds becomes due and collectible in September and March of 
the fiscal year with a 

11/2% 
 per month penalty for delinquent payments; is based on January 1 1 2011 

assessed propertyvaluaflons; is for the taxaccrual period July I 2012 through June 30,2013 and reflects 
the tax asking contained in the budget certified to the County Board of Supervisors in April 2012. Any 
county collections on the 2012-2013 tax levy remitted to the City within 60 days subsequent to June 30, 
2013 !  are recorded as property tax revenue 

H. Customer Accounts and tJnbilled Usage 

Accounts receivable are recorded in the Enterprise Funds at the lime the service is billed. Jnbilled usage 
for service consumed between periodic scheduled billing dates is estimated and is recognized as revenue 
in the period in which the service is provided. 

Short-Term Interfund Receivables/Pavables 

During the course of its operations, the City has numerous transactions between funds to finance 
operations, provide services, construct assets, and service debt. To the extent that certain transactions 
between funds have not been paid or received as of June 30,2013, balances of interfund amounts payab'e 
or receivable have been recorded as "due to other funds" and due from other funds", respectively. Any 
residual balances outstanding between governmental activities and business-type activitiesare reported in 
the governmentwide financial statements as interfund balances. 

J.  Due from Other Governments 

Due from other governments represents amounts due from the State of Iowa, various shared revenues, 
grants and reimbursements from other governments. 

K. Inventories 

Inventories of the proprietary fund types are valued at cost, which approximates market, using the first-
in/first-out (FIFO) method. The costs of governmental fund-type inventories are recorded as e,enditures 
when consumed rather than when purchased. The inventory amounts are not material and therefore not 
recorded on the balance sheet, 
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June 30, 2013 

Note 1-  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICM4T ACCOuNTING POLICIES - (Continued) 

L. Prepaid Items 

Payments made to vendors for services that will benefit periods beyond June 30, 2013 are recorded as 
prepaid items. 

M. Restricted Cash 

Cash restricted for utility deposits. 

N. Property and Equipment 

Assets with an initial individual cost of $1,000 or more are considered capital assets. Property and 
equipment are valued at historical cost or estimated historical cost if actual historical cost is not available. 
Contributed assets are reported attheir fair market value as of the date received. Additions, Wnprovements, 
and other capital outlays that signthcantty extend the useful life of an asset are capitalized. Other costs 
incurred for repairs and maintenance are expensed as incurred. Historical infrastructure has not been 
recorded on these financial statements otherthan buildings and improvements. GASB 34 does notrequire 
the CityofOnawa to record the historical infrasiructure costs. Depreciation on all assets is provided on the 
straight-line basis over the following estimated lives: 

Buildings 39-50 Years 
Utility Plant 20-33 Years 
Machinery and Equipment 3-20 Years 
Infrastructure 15-70 Years 

0. Compensated Absences 

City employees accumulate a limited amount of earned but unused vacation and sick leave hours for 
subsequent use orfor payment upon termination, death or retirement. A liability is recorded when incurred 
in the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements. A liabilityfor these amounts is reported 
in governmental fund financial statements only for employees who have resigned or retired. The 
corn pensated absences liability has been computed based on rates of pay in effect at June 30,2013. The 
compensated absences liability attributable to the governmental activities will be paid primarily by the 
General Fund. 

P. Long-Term Obligations 

Long-term debt is recognized as a liabilityot a governmental fund wtien due, orwhen resources have been 
accumulated in the debt service fund for payment early in the following year. For other long-term 
obligations, only that portion expected to be financed from eqendable available financial resources is 
reported as a fund liability of a governmental fund. The remaining portion of such obligations is repor d in 
the govemment-wde financial statements. Long-term liabilities epected to be financed from proprietary 
fund operations are accounted for in those fijnds. 

0. Fund Equity 

Reserves represent those portions of fund equity legally segregated for a specific future use. 

45 



cm' or ONAWA, IOWA 
Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2013 

Note 1 -  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - (Continued) 

R. Interfund Transactions 

Interfund services provided and used are accounted for as revenues, expenditures or expenses. 
TransactEons that constitute reimbursements to a fund for expenditures/expenses inivally made from itthat 
are properly applicable to another fund are recorded as e enditures/e enses in the reimbursing fund and 
as reductions of eçenditures/expenses in the fund that is reimbursed. All other interfund transactions, 
except interfund services provided and used transactions and reimbursements, are reported as transfers. 

S. Landfill Closure Costs 

The City s partof an Iowa Code Secion 28F agreement with the Monona County Landfill Commission and, 
therefore, not required to account for landfill post-closure costs. 

1. Fund Enuity 

Fund balances for each of Die City's governmental funds (General Fund, special revenue funds, capital 
projectsfunds, and debt service funds) will be displayed in the following classiflcaons depicng the relative 
strength of Die spending constraints placed on the purposes for which resources can be used: 

•  Nonspendable fund balance - amounts that cannot be spent because they are either not in a 
spendable form (such as inventories and prepaid amounts) or are legally or conwactuallyrequired 
to be maintained intact 

•  Restricted fund balance - amounts that can be spent only for specific purposes because of 
consfraints imposed by external providers (such as grantors, bondholders, and higher levels of 
government), or imposed by constitutional provisions or enabling legislalion. 

•  Committed fund balance - amounts which can be used only for specific purposes pursuant to 
consUaints formally imposed by the City Council through cily ordinance approved prior toyear end. 
Those committed amounts cannot be used for any other purpose unless the CityCouncil removes 
or changes the specified use by taking the same aclion it employed to commit those amounts. 

•  Assigned fund balance - amounts the government intends to use for specific purposesthatdo not 
meet the criteria to be classified as reshicted or committed. Citycouncil approvals required to be 
taken to assign amounts to a specific purpose. 

•  Unassigned fund balance - amounts that are available for any purpose; these amounts can be 
reported only in the City's General Fund. 

When the City incurs an expenditure and both restricted and unrestricted amounts are available, the City 
considers re*icted amounts to have been spent. When the City incurs an e enditure for an unresthcted 
amount !  committed amounts are reduced first, followed by assigned amounts and then unassigned 
amounts for purposes in which any of those unrestricted fund balance classification could be used. 

In addition, the Statement clarifies the definitions of the various lypes of governmental funds. 
Interpretaions of certain terms within The newdefinition of special revenue funds mayaffectwhich acvies 
the City can report in special revenue funds. 
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June 30, 2013 

Note 2- 

The City's deposits at June 30,2013, were enfirelycovered by Federal Depository Insurance collateralized wiffi 
securilies or letters of credit held by the City or by a multiple financial institution collateral pooi n accordance 
with Chapter 12C of the Code of Iowa. Chapter 12C provides for additional assessments against 
the depositories to insure there will be no loss of public funds. 

The City is authorized by statute to invest public funds in obligation of the United States government, its 
agencies and insumentalities; certificates of deposit or other evidences of deposit at federally insured 
depository inslitutions approved by The City Council; prime eligible bankers acceptances; certain high rated 
commercial paper; perfected repurchase agreements; certain registered open-end management investment 
companies; and certain joint invesljnenftusts. 

Deposits at June 30, 2013, are shown below: 

Demand Deposits 
Savings Deposits 
Certificate of Deposits 

Primary Bank 
Government Balance 
$ 1,664,110 $ 1,698,622 

1 065232 1,065,232 
833,503 533503 

$ 3562,845 $ 3,597,357 

The primary government's investments are categorized to give an indication of the level of risk assumed bythe 
City at year-end. At June 30 !  2013, the Citys inveshients are in a category characterized as invesftients that 
are insured or registered or for which the securities are held by the City or ts agent in the City's name. 

There were no significant changes in investments held during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013. 

Note 3 -  RECEIVABLES 

Receivables at June 30,2013 are net of allowance for uncollectibles. The allowance for uncollecibles of the 
enterprise funds of the primary government was $18,142 at June 30,2013. 

Note 4-  DUE FROM OTHER GOVERNMENTS 

At June 30,2013, amounts due from other governments were as follows: 

Due from the Iowa Department of Transportation for road use tax allocations $24552 
Due from the State of Iowa for local option sales taxes 30493 

Total Due From Other Governments $55,045 
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June 30, 2013 

Note 5-  INTERFUND RECEIVABLES AND PAYABLES 

As of June 30, 2013. short-term interfund borrowingswere asfollows: 

Fund Due From 
Are Ncnmor 2011 Debt 

Road Slaion Governmental Street Sence Gen&aI 
Fund Due To TIF Use lax Fund Funds P,ect Fund Fund Totals 

SpeciaL Revenue: 
L aI Oplion 

Sales Tax S 7,863 $13074 $450782 $187209 $41,072 S 700.000 
Prcpri ary: 

ELectric Fund 199.481 199.481 
Prapr ary: 

Sewer Fund - __________ - - $ 21,707 265,845 Si 2.448 _________ 30ft000 

$ 7.863 $13,074 $450,782 $ 21.707 $652535 $1 2448 $41,072 SI j  99481 

The Purpose of the interfund balances is to help finance short-term cash shortages of various funds. 
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$ 9050 $ 

9050 

1,314,791 38129 
8,991,188 15012 

10,305,979 53141 

$ - $ 9,050 

- 9.050 

- 1.352,920 
- 9,006,200 
- 10,359,120 

CITY OF ONAWA, IOWA 
Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30! 2013 

Note 6-  CAPITAL ASSETS 

A summary of changes in capital assets is as follows: 

Balance Balance 
July 1, June 30, 
2012 Additions Deletions 2013 

Governmental Activities: 
Capital assets not being depreciated: 
Land 
Construction in Progress 
Total capital assets not being depreciated 

$ 417,239 $ - 
710,822 55262 

1,128,061 55262 

$ $ 417,239 
765,645 439 
765645 417,678 

Capital assets being depreciated: 
Buildings 
Improvements 
Equipment 
Infrastructure 
Total capital assets being depreciated 

5.641168 - 
652158 21698 

2.330837 113651 
1,450223 666561 

10,074,386 801910 

5,641,168 
673,856 

2,444,488 
2116784 

10,876,296 

Less: Accumulated Depreciation for: 
Buildings 
Improvements 
Equipment 
Infrastructure 
Total Accumulated DepreciaUon 
Total capital assets being depreciated, net 

Governmental activities capital assets, net 

Business-Type Activities: 
Capital assets not being depreciated: 
Land 
Consthiction - In progress 
Total capital assets not being depreciated 

Capital assets being depreciated: 
Equipment 
Buildings, Utility Plant, Lines, Etc. 
Total capital assets being depreciated 

930312 114444 
237189 27053 

1,344,901 147676 
339687 95545 

2,852,089 384718 
7,222,297 417192 

$8,350,358 $ 472454 $ 765,645 

1,044,756 
264 .242 

1,492,577 
435,232 

3 .236 .807 
7,639,489 

$8,057,167 

Less: Accumulated Depreciation for: 
Equipment 
Buildings, Utility Plant, Lines, Etc. 
Total Accumulated Depreciation 
Total capital assets being depreciated, net 
Business-Type activities capital assets, net 

1,065,192 57,918 - 1,123,110 
3,862,927 194.641 - 4,057,568 
4,928,119 252,559 - 5,180678 
5377,B60 (199,418) - 5178442 

$5,386,910 $(199,418) $ - $5,187,492 
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Governmental 
Activities 

$ 417,239 
439 

7,639,489 
32,218 
6232 

(1 280,000) 

Business-Type 
Activities 

$ 9,050 

5,178,442 
15,712 

__________________ (1,445,000) 
$ 6815,617 $ 3,758,205 

CFTY OF ONAWA, IOWA 
Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 201 3 

Note 6-  CAPITAL ASSETS - (Continued) 

Construction n progress at June 30, 2013 for governmental activities consisted of costs associated with the 
2013 street capital project of $439. Below are the remaining amounts on the contracts to be completed after 
June 30, 2013. 

2013 Street Capital Project $ 43,424 

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the primary government as follows: 

Governmental Acfivities: 
Public Safety 
Public Works 
Culture and Recreation 
Communityand Economic Development 
General Government 

Total depreciation wqense - governmental activities 

Business-Type Activities: 
Electric 
Water 
Sewer 

Total depreciation eyqense - business-type activities 

Reconciliation of Net Investment in Capital Assets: 

$ 81,312 
40,066 

160,400 
7,395 

95,545 
_____ 384,718 

120171 
95.334 
37,054 

$ 252,559 

Land 
Construction in Progress 
Capital Assets (netof accumulated depreciation) 
Unamortized Bond Issue Cost 
Unamortized Bond Discount 
Less: Genera Obligation Bonds Payable 
Less. State Revolving Fund Revenue 
Net Investment in Capital Assets 

Note 7-  LONG-TERM DEBT 

General Obliaatlon Bonds 

General obligation bonds have been issued for the governmental activities. These bonds are directobligaflons 
and pledge the full faith and credit of the City. 
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June 30, 2013 

Note 7-  LONG-TERM DEBT - (Continuedi 

The City has issued general obligation bonds as follows: 

$830,000 2012 General Obligation Bonds due in annual instal!ments of $100,000 to 
$125000 through 2019. 

$650,000 2010 General Obligation Bonds due n annual installments of $40,000 to 
$55000 through 2025. 

General obligation bonds outstanding as of June 30, 2013 are as follows: 

Purpose Interest Rates Amounts 
Governmental Activities - Library .65-1.60% $  710,000 
Governmental Activities - Fire 2.00 - 4.05% 570,000 

$ 1,280000 

Annual debt service requirements to maturity for general obligation bonds are as foilows: 

Year 
Ending 

June 30, 
2014 
2015 
2016 
2017 
2018 

2019-2025 
Total 

Revenue Bond 

Governmental Activities 
Principal Interest 
$ 165000 $  25547 

165000 23935 
165000 22073 
165000 19,860 
165,000 17,295 
455,000 56,742 

$1,280,000 $ 165452 

The City entered into a Loan (Revenue Bond) Agreement with the Iowa Finance Authority in the amount of 
$1,560,000 for the construction of a water system. The loan has an interest rate of 3% and a servicing fee of 
.25%. The city has agreed to establish rates and other charges to be sufficient to meet the eqenses of the 
water system and to produce and maintain net revenues at a level not less than 110% of the principal and 
interest of the revenue bond. The rates for year ending June 30,2013 were sufficient enough to meet 110% 
requirement. The outstanding loan amount at June 30,2013 was $1445000. 



CITY OF ONAWA, IOWA 
Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2013 

Note 7-  LONG-TERM DEBT - (Continued) 

Revenue bond debt seriice requirements to maturity are as follows: 

Year Ended 
June30 

2014 
2015 

2016 
2017 
2018 

20 19-2023 
2024-2028 

2029-2031 

TOTAL 

$ ervice 
Principal Interest Fee Total 

$ 60.000 $ 43.350  $ 3,612  $ 106,962 
62,000 41,550 3,463 107013 

64,000 39,690 3,307 106,997 
66,000 37.770 3,148 106,918 
69,000 35,790 2,983 107,773 

378,000 146,610 12,217 536827 
443.000 86.130 7,177 536307 
303,000 18,360 1,530 322890 

$ 1,445.000 $  449.250 $ 37,437 $ 1,931687 

Changes in Long-Term Liabilities 

Long-Term Liability acfivity for the year ended June 30,2013, was as follows: 

Beginning Ending Due Within 
Balance Increases Decreases Balance One Year 

Primary Government: 
Governmental Activities: 
Bonds Payable: 

General Obligation $ 1,440000 $ 160,000 $ 1280000 $ 165,000 
Other Fostemployment 

Benefits 9526 $ 3526 5,814 7238 
Compensated Absences 48043 9,943 12,011 45,975 11,494 
Total 1,497,569 13.469 177.825 1,333,213 176.494 

Business-Type Activities: 
Revenue Bonds 1.503.000 58.000 1,445000 60,000 
Compensated Absences 44,841 16,747 11,211 50,377 12,595 

Total $ 1.547.841 $ 16.747 $ 69.211 $1,495,377 $ 72.595 

For the governmental activities, other post employment benefits, and compensated absences, obligathns are 
generally liquidated by the general fund and the general obligation bonds will be repaid by debt service tax 
levies. 
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Note B -  TRANSFERS 

The following isa summary of transfers between funds: 

Transfer to 
Transfers From General 
Business-Type Activities - Electric $ 12,000 
Local Option Sales Tax 175,000 
Nonmajor Governmental 1.053 

J 188053 

Transfers are used to: 

1.  Move revenues from the fund that statute or budget requires to collect them to the fund that statute or 
budget requires to e end them. 

2.  To move receipts restricted to debt service from the fund coRecting the receipts to the debt service fund 
as debt service payments become due. 

3.  To use unrestricted revenues cotlected in the general fund to finance various programs accountedfor 
in other funds in accordance with budgetary authorizations. 

4.  To move receipts collected by Business-Type Activity funds to General Fund in accordance with 
budgetary authorizations. 

Note 9 -  PENSION AND RETIREMENT 

Iowa Public Emp'oyees Retirement System - The City contributes to the Iowa Public Employees Rerement 
System (IPERS), which is a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan administered by the 
State of Iowa. IPERS provides retirement and death benefits which are established by State statute plan to 
members and beneficiaries. IPERS issues a publicly available financial reportthat includesfinancial statements 
and required supplementary information. The report maybe obtained bywriting to IFERS, P.O. Box9117, Des 
Moines, Iowa 50306-9117. 

Most plan members are required to contribute 5.78% of their annual covered salary and the City is required to 
contribute 8.67% of annual covered payroll except for public safety employees, n which case, the percentages 
are actuarially determined. Contribution requirements are established by state statute. The Cityconfribution to 
IPERS forthe yearsended June 30,2013,2012, and 2011 were 391,339, $97 ! 261,and $83,313 !  respectively, 
equal to the required contributions for each year 

Effective July I, 2013, the City's required contribution to IPERS increased to 8.93% and 10.14% of annual 
covered payroll for plan members and police employees, respectively. 
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Note 10- OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) 

Plan Description. The City operates a single-employer group health plan which provides 
medical/prescription drug benefits for retirees and their spouses, under COBRA provisions. 
There are 24 active members in the plan. Parucipants must be age 55 orolderwith atleastten 
years of service at retirement. 

The medical/prescription drug coverage is a partially self-funded medical plan, administered by 
Three Rivers Benefit Corporalion. Retirees under age 65 pay the same premium for the 
medical/prescription drug benefit as active employees, which results in an implicit subsidy and 
an OPEB liability. 

Funding Policy. The contribution requirements of plan members are established and maybe 
amended by the City. The City currently finances the retiree benefit plan on a pay-as-you-go 
basis with the funds being paid from the governmental fund related to the various employees. 

Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation. The City's annual OPEB cost is calculated 
based on the annual required contribulion (ARC) of the City, an amount actuariallydetermined 
in accordance with GASB Statement No.45. The ARC represents a level of funding tat, if paid 
on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover normal cost each year and amortize any unfunded 
actuarial liabilities over a period not to exceed 30 years. 

The followrng table shows the components of the City's annual OPEB cost for the year ended 
June 30 !  2013 !  the amount actuallycontributed to the plan and the City's netOPEB obligalion: 

Annual required contribution $ 3,682 
Interest on net OPEB obligation 429 
Adjustment to annual required contribution (585) 

Annual OPEB cost 3,526 
Contributions made (5,814) 

decrease in net OPEB obligation (2,288) 
Net OPEB obligation beginning of year 9,526 
Net OPEB obligation end of year $ 7238 

For calculation of the net OPEB obligation the actuary has set the transition day as July I, 
2012. The end of year net OPEB obligation was calculated by the actuary as the cumulative 
difference between the actuarially determined funding requirements and the actual 
contributions for the year ended June 30, 2013. 

The City's annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to the plan and 
the net OPEB obligation as of June 30, 2013 are summarized as follows. 
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Note 10 - OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) - (Continued) 

Percentage of Net 
Year Annual Annual ORES ORES 

Ended OPEB Cost Cost Contributed Obligation 
June 30, 2013 $ 3,526 -0- $7,238 
June 30, 2012 $ 3360 -0- $9,526 
June 30, 2011 $ 3083 -0- $ 6166 
June 30, 2010 $3,083 -0- S 3,083 

Funded Status and Funding Progress. As of July 1,2012 !  the most recent actuarial valuation 
date for the period July 1,2012 through June 30, 2013 !  the actuarial accrued liability was 
$7,238, with no actuarial value of assets! resuiting in an unfunded actuarial accrued liability 
(UAAL) of $7238. The covered payroll (annual payroll of active employees covered by the 
plan) was approximately$1 .059,670 and the ratio of the UAAL to covered payroU was .68%. As 
of June 30, 2013. there were no trust fund assets. 

Actuaria Methods and Assumptions. Actuarial valuations ofan ongoing plan involveesvmates 
of the value of reported amounts and assumptions about the probabilityof occurrence of events 
far into the future. Examples include assumptionsaboutfuture employment, mortality and the 
health care cost vend. ActuariaDy determined amounts are subject to continual revision as 
actual results are compared with past expectations and new estimates are made about the 
future. The schedule of funding progress, presented as required supplementary informalion in 
the section following the Notes to Financial Statements, will present multiyearfrend informauon 
about whether the actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over Ume relauve to 
the actuarial accrued liabilities for benefits. 

Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the plan as understood by 
the employer and the plan members and include the types of benefits provided at the time of 
each valuation and the historical pattern of sharing of benefit costs between the employer and 
plan members to thatpoint The actuarial methods and assumptions used include techniques 
designed to reduce the effects of short-term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the 
actuarial value of assets, consistent with the long-term perspective of the calculations. 

As of July I, 2012 actuari& valuation date, the Alternative Measurement Method (AMM) 
permitted under GASB Statement 45, a simplified version of the Projected Unit CreditActuarial 
Cost Method was used to determine the annual required contribution. The actuarial 
assumptions include a 4.5% investment return rate based on the Oily's funding policy. 3% 
salary Encreases and a 3% inflation rate. The projected annual medical trend rate is 9%. The 
ultimate medical trend rate is 5%. The medical trend rate is reduced 1% each year unl 
reaching the 5% ultimate trend rate. 

Mortality rates are from the 2004 United States Life Tables, Based on the assumption that 
retirees were to participate in the insurance until their sick leave accountwas e4iausted. Atthat 
Ume continued participation was assumed to be 10% for active employees that are currently 
waiving coverage. 

Projected claim costsof the medical plan are $12 ! 471 and $14,990 annuallyfor retireesand 
spouses, respectively, less than age 65. The salary increase rate was assumed lobe 3.0% per 
year. The UAAL is being amortized as a level percentage of projected payroll expense on an 
open basis over 30 years. 
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Note II -  DEFICIT FUND EQUITY 

The Cityhas sixfunds with deficit equity balances at June 30 2013. The City intends to finance these deficits 
from various resources including general funds, special assessments to be collected and future property tax 
levies and TIE revenues. 

The individual fund deficits were as follows: 

Special Revenue - TIE.............. 

Debt Service ............................... 

Capital Project -2011 Street Project ................................... 
Capital Project- Library Expansion ...................................... 

Capital Project - Fire Station .................................... 

Capital Project -2013 Street Project .............................. 

Note 12- OTHER FUNDS 

The following nonmajor funds have Restricted Fund Balances for specific purposes: 

I-Jobs: For I-Jobs e,qenditures 
Airport Project: For airport project 

The following nonmajor funds have Nonspendable Fund Balances: 

Cemetery Perpetual Care: For cemetery maintenance 
Library Endowment Fund: For library books, etc. 

The following nonmajor funds have Unassigned Deficit Fund Balances: 

Library Project 

Note 13- RISK MANAGEMENT 

$ 10,385 

9,976 

649,614 

21,268 

450,782 

$ 439 

$ 29.202 
$ 12,756 

$93,016 
$33,020 

$(21 .268) 

The City is a member of the Iowa Communities Assurance Fool as allowed by Chapter 670.7 of the Code of 
Iowa. The Iowa Communities Assurance Pool (Pool) is a local government risk-sharing pool whose 679 
members include various governmental entities throughout the State of Iowa. The Pool was formed in August 
1986 for the purpose of managing and funding third-party liability claims against its members The Pool 
provides coverage and protection in the following categories: general liability, automobile liability, automobile 
physical damage, public officials liability, police professional liability, property, Enland marine, and 
boiler/machinery. There have been no reductions in insurance coverage from prior years. 

Each member's annual casualty contributions to the Pool fund current operations and provide capital, Annual 
operating contributions are those amounts necessary to fund, on a cash basis, the Fool's general and 
administrative expenses, claims, claims expenses and reinsurance expenses due and payable in the current 
year. plus all or any portion of any deficiency in capital. Capital contributions are made during the first sAxyears 
of membership and are maintained at a level determined by the Board not to exceed 300% of total current 
members' basis rates or to comply with the requirements of any applicable regulatory authority having 
jurisdiction over the Pool. 
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CFY OF ONAWA, IOWA 
Notes to Financiai Statements 

June 30, 2013 

Note 13-  RISK MANAGEMENT - (Continued) 

The Pool also provides property coverage. Members who elect such coverage make annual operating 
contributionswhich are necessarytofund, on a cash basis, the Fool'sgeneral andadminishavee,pensesand 
reinsurance premiums, all ofwhich are due and payable in the currentyear, plus all or anyportion ofdeficiency 
in capital. Any year-end operating surplus is transferred to capital. Deficiencies in operations are offset by 
transfers from capital and! if insufficient, by the subsequent years member contributions. 

The City's properly and casualty contributions to the risk pool are recorded as disbursementsfrom its operating 
funds at the time of payment to the risk pooL The City's contributions to the Fool for the year ended June 30, 
2013 were $88881. 

The Pool uses reinsurance and excess risk-sharing agreements to reduce its exposure to large losses The 
Pool retains general, automobile, police professional, and public officials' liabiktyrisks up to $350,000 per claim. 
Claims exceeding $350,000 are reinsured in an amount not to exceed S2650,000 per claim. For members 
requiring specific coverage from $3,000,000 to $15,000,000 such excess coverage is also reinsured, Froperty 
and automobile physical damage risks are retained by the Pool up to $250,000 each occurrence, each location, 
with excess coverage reinsurance by the Travelers Insurance Company 

The Fool's intergovernmental contract with its members provides that in the event a casualty cLaim or series of 
claims exceeds the amount of risk-sharing protection provided by the member's risk-sharing certificate, or in the 
event a series of casualty claims ethausts total members' equity plus any reinsurance and any excess risk-
sharing recoveries, then payment of such claims shall be the obligation of the respecth,e indi'Adual member. As 
of June 30, 2013, settled clatms have not exceeded the risk pool or reinsurance coverage since the Pools 
inception. 

Members agree to continue membership in the Pool for a period of not less than one full year. After such 
period, a member who has given 60 days' prior written notice may withdrawfrom the Pool. Upon withdrawal, 
payments for alt casualty claims and claims expenses become the sole responsibflity of the withdrawing 
member, regardless ofwhethera claim has incurred or reported prior to the member's withdrawaL Members 
withdrawing within the first six years of membership may receive a partial refund of their casualty capital 
contributions. If a member withdraws after the sixth year, tile member is refunded 100% of its casualty capital 
contributions. However !  the refund is reduced byan amount equal to the annual casualty operaing conhibution 
which the withdrawing member would have made for the one-year period following withdrawal. 

Note 14- INVESTMENT IN WIMECA 

Western Iowa Municipal Electric Cooperative Association (WIMECA) was incorporated on December 4, 1973, 
under the laws of Iowa. The Association operates as a cooperative for six municipalities The primaryacuvityof 
the Association is the acquisition of electric power and energy which is sold to its member municipalities 

It is the intent of the Association to operate on a nonprofit basis and, accordingly, earnings are distributed in 
accordance with the provisions of Chapter 499 of the Code of Iowa. In order to comply with such provisions, 
earnings must first be allocated to meet certain reserve and surplus requirements with remaining earnings 
allocated to the account of each member municipahty based on the proportion of business which each 
municipality has done with the Association during the year The City of Onawa's Electric Enterprise Funds 
proportion of business for the year ended December 31, 2012 represents 3232% of the total member 
business 
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CFTY OF ONAWA, IOWA 
Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2013 

Note 14- INVESTMENT IN WIMECA— (Continuedi 

The last available informaon for WIMECA is from its December31 2012 independent audit report. These 
financial statements are available at the City office. 

The summary financial information of WIMECA is as follows: 

Total Assets 

Total Liabilities 
Total Equity 

Total Liabilities and Equity 

Total Revenue 
Total Eqense 

Net Earnings 

At December 31,2012, WIMECA had no outstanding bonds. 

December 31, 
2C 12 

$ 5941.600 

584.755 
5356.845 
5941.600 

6,936,646 
6 .417327 

S _A9,319 

At June 30.2013. the City of Onawa Electric Enterprise Fund investment in WIMECA was as follows: 

June 30, 
2013 

Beginning Balance at July 1,2012 $ 1907203 
Add: Net Earnings 158,148 
Less: Dividends Paid (220.503 
Ending Balance at June 30, 2013 $ 

Note 15- CONTINGENCIES N4D COMMITMENTS 

On June 21, 2010, the City Council authorized the City to enter into a garbage hauling contract wfth Ross 
Enterprises, Inc. for the period of July 1,2010 through June 30, 2015 at an annual cost of approximately 
$130,000 for FY 2011, with an annual increase of approximately 2.5% for FY 2012- FY 2015, based on the 
number of customers. This annual cost is subject to adjustment based on increases in fuel costs. 

Note 16- SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 

The Cay has evaluated all subsequent events through December 9,2013, the date the financial statements 
were available to be issued. 
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CITY OF ONAWA 
NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION - BUDGETARY REPORTING 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013 __________ _______________________________ 
The budgetary comparison is presented as Required Supplementary nformation in accordance with 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 41 for governments with significant 
budgetary perspective differences resulting from not being able to present budgetary comparisons 
for the General Fund and each major Special Revenue Fund. 

In accordance with the Code of Iowa, the City Council annually adopts a budget on the cash basis 
following required public notice and hearing for all funds except Agency Funds and the Internal 
Service Funds, and appropriates the amount deemed necessary for each of the different Cityoffices 
and departments. The budgets may be amended during the year utilizing similar statutorily 
prescribed procedures. Encumbrances are not recognized on the cash basis budget and 
appropriations lapse at year end. 

Formal and legal budgetary control is based upon nine major classes of disbursements known as 
functions, not by fund. These nine functions are: public safety, public works, community and 
economic development !  health and social services, culture and recreation, general government, debt 
service, capital projects, and business-type activities. Function disbursements required to be 
budgeted include disbursements forthe General Fund, Special Revenue Funds !  Debt Service Fund !  
Capital Projects Funds and the Enterprise Funds. Although the budget document presents function 
disbursements by fund, the legal level of control is at the aggregated function level, not by fund. 

The following schedule demonstrates the City's legal compliance to the budget 

Budgeted 
Function Original 
Public Safety $ 541 049 
Public Works 363,018 
Culture & Recreation 522,963 
Community & Economic Development 166,470 
General Government 172,515 
Capital Projects 935,000 
DebtService 191,648 
Business-Type Activities 4,436,633 
Totar $7,329,296 

See Accompanying Independent 
Audftors 

 Report 
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CITY OF ONAWA, IOWA 
Schedule of Funding Progress for the 

Retiree Health Plan 

Required Supplementary Information _______________________________ 
Actuarial UAAL as a 

Actuarial Accrued Unfunded Percentage 
Actuarial Value of Liability AAL Funded Covered of Covered 

Fiscal VaLuation Assets (APt) (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll 
- Year Date (a) (b) (b ) (Sb) (c) ((b-a)/c) 

2010  July 1,2009 - $ 23744 $ 23744 000% $940,710 2,5% 
2011 July 1,2009 - $ 23744 $ 23744 0.00% $ 940,710 2,5% 
2012 July 1,2009 - $ 23744 $ 23,744 0.00% $ 940,710 2.5% 
2013 July 1,2012 - $ 36301 $ 36,301 0.00% 5937.869 3.9% 

See Note 10 in the accompanying Notes to Financial Statements for the plan description, funding 
policy, annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation, funded status and funding progress. 

See Accompanying Independent Auditors' Report 
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CITY OF ONAWA 
Required Supplementary Information - Budgetary Reporting 

For the Year Ended June 30. 2013 

Actual Amounts 
Governmental Proprietary Total 
Fund Types Fund Types Actual 

Revenues: 
Taxes 
Special Assessments 
Licerses and Permits 
Intergovernmental Revenue 
Charges for Sewices 
Fines and Forfeits 
Conbibutions 
Grants 
Interesl 
Payment In Lieu of Taxes 
Miscellaneous 

Total Revenues 

ExpendItures/Expenses: 
Public Safety 
Public Works 
Culture and Recreation 
Community and Economic Development 
General Government 
Capital Projects 
Debt Service 
Business-Type Activities 

Total Expenditures/Expenses 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues over 
Expenditures/Expenses 

Other Financing Sources (Uses): 
Transfers In 
Transfers Out 

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 

Excess (Deticiency) of Revenues and Other Financing 
Sources Over Expenditures/Expenses and Other Uses 

$ 1,133,372 $ - 
40,138 - 
15,224 - 

594,520 - 
112,317 3,719,762 

10,211 - 
50,271 - 
19.415 - 
17,894 896 

119.526 - 
90,802 278,428 

2,203.690 3,999,086 

526,091 - 
234,894 - 
478.986 - 

79,961 - 
132,428 - 
42,840 - 

168,393 - 
9,845 3,696,330 

1 693,438 3,696,330 

510,252 302,756 

188,053 - 
(176,053) (12,000) 

12,000 (12,000) 

522252 290,756  

$ 1 j33,372 
40,138 
15,224 

594, 520 
3832,079 

10211 
50,271 
19.41 5 
1 8,790 

119,526 
369.230 

6,202,776 

526,091 
234,894 
4 78,986 

79,961 
132.428 
42,840 

188,393 
3,706,175 

5.369,766 

813,006 

188,053 
(188053) 

81 3.008 

Fund Balance/Retained Earnings at Beginning of Year 1.690,758 1,483,288 3,174,046 

Fund Balance/Retained Earnings at End of Year $ 2,213.010 $ 1 774,044 $ 3,987,054 

See Accompanying Independent Auditors' Report 
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Budgeted Amounts Final Budget 
Favorable 

Original Final (Unfavorable) 

$ 1,127,747 $ 1,127,747 $ 5.625 
28.966 28,966 11,172 
12790 12,790 2434 

1,467,857 1,467,857 (873,337) 
4,468,328 4,468,328 (636,249) 

- - 10211 
- - 50271 
- - 19415 

13607 13,607 5183 
- - 119526 

48,205 48,205 321025 

7,167,500 7167,500 (964,724) 

541,049 541049 14958 
383,018 363,018 128,124 
522.963 522,963 43,977 
166,470 166,470 86,509 
172,515 172515 40087 
935,000 935,000 892 ! 160 
191,648 191,648 3255 

4,436,633 4,436,633 730458 

7,329,296 7,329,296 1,939,528 

(161,796) (161,796) 974,804 

292,000 292,000 103$47 
(292,000) (292.000) (103!947) 

$ (161,796) $ (161,796) $ 974,804 

See Aonipanying Independent Auditors Report 
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CITY OF ONAWA 
Required Supplementary Information - Budgetary Reporting 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2013 

Governmental and Proprietary Fund Types 

Modified 
Cash Accrual Accrual 
Basis Adjustments Basis 

$ 1 133372 $ 1 462 $ 1 134834 
40138 1 702 41840 
1 5,224 - 1 5224 

594520 (3,779) 590741 
3832,079 281 3,832350 

10211 - 10,211 
50,271 - 50,271 
19415 (I 9415) - 
18,790 (3,107) 15683 

119,526 - 119!526 
369230 (91522) 277,708 

6202,776 (114378) 6,088,398 

Revenues: 
Taxes 
Special Assessments 
[icenses and Permits 
Intergovernmental Revenue 
Charges for Services 
Fines and Forfeits 
Contributions 
Grants 
Interest 
Payment in Lieu of Taxes 
Miscellaneous 

Total Revenues 

Expenditures/Expenses: 
Public Safety 
Public Works 
Culture and Recreation 
Community and Economic Development 
General Government 
Capital Projects 
Debt Service 
Business-Type Activities 

Total Expenditures/Expenses 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over 
Expenditures/Expenses 

Other Financing Sources (Uses): 
Transfers In 
Transfers Out 

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues and Other Financing 
Sources Over Expenditures/Expenses and Other Uses 

Fund Balance/Retained Earnings at Beginning of Year 

Fund Balance/Retained Earnings at End ofYear 

526,091 
234,894 
478,988 

79,961 
132,428 
42,840 

188.393 
3706.175 
5,389768 

813,008 

8,062 534,153 
2,106 237,000 
3752 482738 
2!900 82861 

10,330 142758 
26,992) 15,848 

- 188.393 
1 37123 3,843,298 
137,281 5527049 

(251,659) 561,349 

188,053 - 188,053 
(188.053) - (188053) 

81 3008 (251,559) 561349 

2749892 6200536 8,950428 

3,552900 $ 5,948,877 $ 9511777 

See Accompanying Independent A ud it ors ! Report 
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CITY OF ONAWA IOWA 
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET 
GOVERNMENTAL NONMAJOR FUNDS 
JUNE 30, 2013 

Special Capital Projects 
Revenue 2013 

Fund Street Airport Library 
I-Jobs Project Project Project 

ASSETS 
Cash and Pooled Investments $ 29202 $ -  $ 12,756 $ - 
Investments - - - 
Accrued Interest - - - 

Total Assets 29202 - 12756 - 

LIABILITIES 
Due to Other Funds 
Total Liabilities 

FUND BALANCES 
No ns p e n d a b Ie 

Perpetual Care 
Endowment 

Restricted For 
I-Jobs 

Assigned For: 
Capital Projects 

Unassigned 
Total Fund Batances (Deflcits) 
Total Liabilities and Fund Bajances 

- 439 - 21268 
439 - 21268 

29! 202 

12756 

29202 (439) 12756 (21265) 
$ 29202 $ -  $ 12756 $ - 

See Accompanying ndependent Authtors' Report 
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Permanent Fund Total 
Cemetery Library Governmental 

Perpetual Care  Endowment Nonmajor 
Fund Fund Funds 

$ 6,276 $ -  $ 4B234 
86,500 33,000 119,500 

240 20 260 
93016 33,020 167994 

- - 21707 
- 21.707 

93,016 - 93.016 
- 33,020 33.020 

29202 

- - 12,756 
- - (21,707) 

93.016 33,020 146,287 
$ 93,016 $ 33,020 $ 167,994 
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CITY OF ONAWA, IOWA 
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 
GOVERNMENTAL NONMAJOR FUNDS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013 

Special Capital Project. 
Revenue 2013 

Fund Street Airport Library 
I-Jobs Project Project Project 

Revenues: 
Conthbutions $ -  $ -  $ -  $ 
Interest - - - - 

Total Revenues - - - - 

Expend itures: 
Capital Projects - 439 - - 

Total Expenditures - 439 - - 

Excess (deficiency) of 
revenues over expenditures - (439) - - 

Other tinancng sources (uses): 
Transfers Out - - - - 

Total otherfinandng sources (uses) - - - - 

Net Change n Fund Balance - (439) - - 

Fund balances (deficits) -beginning of year 29202 - 12756 (21268) 

Fund balances (deficits) - end of year $ 29202 $ (439) $ 12.756 $ (21268) 

See Accompanying Independent Auditors Report 
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Permanent Fund Total 
Cemetery Library Governmental 

Perpetual Care Endowment Nonmajor 
Fund Fund Funds 

$ 1 050 $ - $ 1 050 
418 182 600 

1 488 182 1.650 

439 

(871) (182) (1 ! 053) 
(671) (182) (1!053) 

597 158 

92419 33020 146129 

$ 93O16 $ 33020 $ 146287 
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CITY OF ONAWA, IOWA 
COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS 
JUNE 302013 

Risk Insurance 

ASSETS 
Cash $ 118453 $ 328 $ 118,781 
Accounts Receivable - 650 650 

Total Assets 118,453 978 119431 

LIABILITIES 
None 

Total Liabilities 

NET POSITION $ 118,453 $ 978 $ 119431 

See Accompanying Independent Auditors' Report 
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CITY OF ONAWA, IOWA 
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION 
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013 

Risk Insurance 

Operating Revenues: 
Charges for Services to Operating Funds $ $ 31.091 $ 31,091 

Total Operaling Revenues - 31091 31,091 

Operating Expenses: 
General Government 9845 9845 

Total Operating Expenses - 9545 9,845 

Operating Income 21,246 21,246 

Net position - beginning 118,453 20,268} 98,185 

Net position - ending $ 118453 $ 978 $ 119,431 
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CITY OF ONAWA, IOWA 
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013 

Risk Insurance 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES: 
Cash Received from Customers 
Cash Paid to Suppliers 

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES: 
Advances From (to) Other funds 

Net Cash Provided (Used) for Investing Activities 

Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning ofYear 

Cash and Cash Equivalents at End ofYear  

$ - $ 31.041 $ 31.041 
- (10,039) (10039) 
- 21.002 21002 

118,453 (20674) 97.779 
118,453 (20674) 97779 

118453 328 118,781 

$ 118,453 $ 328 $ 118781 

Reconciliation of Operating Income to Net 
Cash Provided by Operating Activities 

Operating Income 
Adjusthients to Reconcile Net Operating Income to Net Cash 
Provided by Operating Activities 

Decrease in Accounts Receivabte 
(Decrease) in Accounts Payable 
Total Adjustments 

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 

$ -  $ 21,246 $ 21246 

- 50 50 
- (194) (194) 
- (144) (144) 

$ -  $ 21102 $ 21.102 

See Accompanying Independent Auditors' Report 
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STATIS11CAL SECTION 

(NOT COVERED BY AUDITORS' REPORT) 



CITY OF ONAWA 
STATISTICAL SECTION 

This part of the City of Onawa's comprehensive annual financial report presents detailed 
information as a context for understanding what the informatIon in the financial statements, note 
disclosures, and required supplementary information says about the government's overall financial 
health. 

Contents; Pages 

Financial Trends 72-82 

These schedules contain trend information to help the 
reader understand how the government's financial 
performance and well-being have changed over time. 

Revenue Capacity 83 - 87 

These schedules contain information to help the reader 
assess the government's most significant local revenue 
source, the property tax. 

Debt Capacity 88— 91 

These schedules present information to help the reader 
assess the affordability of the government's current levels 
of outstanding debt and the government's ability to issue 
additional debt in the future. 

Demographic and Economic Information 92 

These schedu'es offer demographic and economic 
indicators to help the reader understand the environment 
within which the government's financial activities take place. 

Operating Information 93-101 

These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to 
help the reader understand how the information in the 
government's financial report relates to the services the 
government provides and the activities it performs. 

Sources: Unless otherwise noted! the information in these schedules is derkeed from the comprehensive annual reports forthe 
relevant year. 
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CITY OF ONAWA. IOWA 

TABLE I 

Government-wide Net Position by Component' 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 

(accrual basis of accounting) 

Fiscal Y r 
2 2QQ 20% 2Z 

Governmental Activities 
Invested in Capital Assets, net of related debt $ 1,297,694 $ 3708775 $ 4,083.125 $ 4,156835 
Restricted 232,713 114,345 118325 121522 
Unrestjicted 2,777,798 1 525.551 1,721779 2.396 !941 

Total Governmental Activities Net Position $ 4308205 $ 5,348671 $ 5,921,229 $ 6,675298 

Business-type Activities 
Invested En CsptaI Assets, net of related debt 
Restricted 
Unrestricted 

Total Business-type Activities 

$ 3,331,990 $ 3,291,706 $ 3274464 $ 3,161569 

4.157.395 4,316,055 4,468,232 4417 !915 
$ 7.489,385 $ 7,607.761 $ 7.742,716 $ 7,579484 

Primary Government 
Invested in Capital Assets netof related debt $ 4,629,684 $ 7,000481 $ 7357,609 $ 7,318404 
Restncted 232,713 114,345 116,325 121522 
Unrestricted 6935,193 5,641606 6,190,011 6,814856 

Total Pnmary Government Activities Net 
Position $ 11,797,590 $ 12956,432 $ 13663945 $ 14,254.782 

Notes: 

Accounting standards require that the net position be reported in three components in the financial statements: 
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt; restricted and unrestdcted. The net position is considered restdcted only 
when (I) an external party, such as the State of Iowa or the federal government, places restrictions on how the 
resources may be used, or(2) enabling legislations enacted by the City. 
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Fiscal Year 
2QQ ZQiQ ZQfl 

$ 4,316,440 $ 4710430 $ 5232,130 $ 6.285730 $6,953,557 $6815617 
1 288,965 1 310684 979.785 1 019651 854,833 933927 
1.569,514 1 492,477 1.453.877 639,341 - 741099 1 ,148 ! 477 

$ 7174919 $ 7513591 $ 7.665.792 $ 7944,722 $8549489 $8898021 

$ 3.198,303 $ 3,075,590 $ 3,322.127 $ 3,902,382 $3,900,500 $3,758,205 

4,492,369 4,361240 4.003,467 3,624,599 3,528,035 3,749200 
$ 7,690,672 $ 7,436,830 $ 7,325,594 $ 7,526981 $ 1.428,535 $ 7.507,405 

$ 7,514,743 $ 7,786,020 $ 8,554,257 $10,186,112 $1 0.854,057 $10,573,822 
1,288,965 1,310,664 979,785 1,019,651 854,833 933,927 
6,061,883 5,853,717 5,457,344 4,263,940 4.269,134 4,897,677 

$14,865,591 $14,950,421 $ 14,991,386 $15,471,703 $15,978,024 $16,405,426 

73 



CITY CF ONAWA, IOWA 

TABLE II 

Changes in Net Position 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 

(accrual basis of accounting) 

2004 
Ex pensa& 
Governmental AcUvities 

Public Safety $  435,037 
Public Works 252.568 
CuitLile and Recreation 364,443 
community and Economic Development 133273 
General Government 173,618 
Debt Service 70,732 

Total Governmental Act'v'ties Expenses $ 1,429671 

Fiscal Year 
2005 2006 2007 

$ 481,673 $ 445,971 $ 512,418 
200,448 250.256 252991 
420,950 491.103 534980 
57791 83.261 89769 

156,050 159.999 173,894 
40,511 84,230 67.267 

$ 1357,423 $ 1514320 $ 1,601.319 

Business-type Activities 
Electric System $ 1,417,066 $ 1,593,206 $ 1.768.956 $ 1777.438 
Water System 281441 361903 376,228 395,571 
SewerSystem 500891 520,473 529,236 546919 

Total Business-type Activities Expenses $ 2.199,398 $ 2475,582 $ 2,672420 $ 2,721928 

Total Primary Government Expenses $ 3,629,069 $ 3.833,005 $ 4,187,240 $ 4,323,247 

Program Revenues 
Governmental Activities: 

Charges for Services 
Public Safety $ 10,859 
Public Works 
Culture and Recreation 14,488 

General Government 14,500 
Operating Grants and Contributions 723.280 
Capital Grants and Conbibutions 60000 

Total Governmental AcItles Program Revenues  $ 863.127 

$ 6,107 $ 11,419 $ 12.306 

86,297 80,353 87.3 
14,530 15,000 18.000 

421,916 354,245 391,214 
240,342 147895 9,271 

$ 769.162 $  608,912 $ 518.097 

Business-type Activities. 
Charges for Services 

Eleciric System $ 1646.711 $ 1654,084 S 1,784,123 $ 1,674,900 
Water System 304,472 286.369 308.879 295,762 
Sewer System 478,166 463.509 495,505 477.789 

Total Business-type Activities Program Revenues $ 2,429,349 $ 2,403962 $ 2,588,507 $ 2,44e,451 

Total Primary Government Program Revenues $ 3,312,476 S 3.173,124 $ 3,197,419 $ 2,966548 

Net (Expense)IRevenue2 
 

Governmental Activities: $ (548,544) $ (588,261) $ (905908) $ (1,083,222) 
Business-type ActIvities: 229,951 (71.620) (83.913) (273,477) 
Total Primary Government Net Expense $ (316,593) $ (659,881) $ (989,821) $ (1,356,699) 
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Fiscal Year 

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 

$  522.880 $ 531966 $  544,259 $  537,893 $ 594,434 $ 588,187 
261,866 223606 295,307 299.537 294,261 305,948 
560,377 550496 554,150 520,619 803,589 563,767 
81891 74,567 104!579 68.046 94352 82,861 

187646 217,204 204!968 274.008 372720 253949 
62696 57788 52130 60,082 70,453 31635 

$ 1677,356 $ 1655,625 S 1 $ 1760,185 $2,029,809 $ 1626367 

$ 1,846,979 $ 2,315,641 $ 2,522,518 $ 2.552,807 $ 2,704,222 $2,801,978 
354,763 406,944 360,061 438,065 474,458 452,160 
546,477 579,552 586,126 583.466 584,344 530,612 

$ 2.748.219 $ 3,302.137 S 3,468.705 $ 3.574,358 $ 3,763,024 $ 3784,750 

$ 4,425,575 $ 4,957762 $ 5224,098 $ 5.334,543 $ 5,792,833 $5,611,117 

$ 11,160 $ 8,905 S 5,993 $ 8,404 $ 5230 S 8,670 
- - 1.200 1,680 1200 1.440 

76,468 82,070 7384 91,749 88,94 83,377 

20,983 20963 40,535 11 958 28,528 46.315 
443,136 446,699 406,090 349756 339,068 381.812 

125,000 54,741 - - 333.580 - 

$  676,747 $ 615,398 $  527,672 $  463547 $ 798,554 $ 519614 

$ 1782,798 $ 1,879,394 $ 2.156096 $ 2,174,275 S 2,184593 $2,637,228 
295074 358309 353.034 378.316 420417 457.313 

483054 552,825 572,319 607347 635180 625,452 

$ 2560.926 $ 2.800.528 $ 3.081 !449 $ 3,160,238 $ 3240190 $3,719,993 

$ 3.237.673 $ 3.415.926 $ 3,609,121 $ 3.623765 $ 4.036,744 $ 4239607 

$ (1,000,609) $ (1040227) $ (1227,721) $ (1.296,638) $0233,255) $(l 306753) 

(187,293) (501,609) (387,256) (414,120) (522,834) (64.757) 

$ (1,187,902) $ (1.541.836) $ (1.614.917) $ (1,710,758) 5(1.756,089) $(1,371,510) 
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CITY OF ONAWA, IOWA 

TABLE II (Continued) 

Changes in Net Position 1 
 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 
(accrual basis of accounting) 

Fiscal Year 
2 ZQQZ 

General Revenues 
Governmental Activities: 

Propeity Taxes $ 1010,564 $ 1119%? $ 1059,464 $ 1128,832 
Local Option Sales Tax 163,564 164.447 169,515 167,862 
Interest 63561 75,957 95.990 121,100 
General Intergovernmental Revenues 45618 76,132 34607 42,952 
Payment in Leu of Taxes 84,552 87654 86,578 92,845 
Confributions 1100 2,079 3,350 38,025 
Miscellaneous 46,107 31,136 34,490 92,981 
Proceeds from Sale of Real Estate - - - 15,000 
Transfers - 77293 - 40000 

Total Governmental Activities $ 1415,066 $ 1,633,765 $ 1.484,194 $ 1,739597 
Eus]ness-type Activities: 

Interest $ 9.242 $ 33,343 $ 75,277 $ 95,345 
Intergovernmental Revenues/Grants - - - - 
Sale of Merchandise 16.897 29.573 26583 15823 
Miscellaneous 241,753 187335 111,280 136,771 

Gain on Sale of Fixed Assets 
Assets Aquired Through Annexation - 12000 - 
Transfers - (77,293) - (40,000) 

Total Business-type Activities $ 267892 $ 184968 $ 213140 $ 207939 
Total Primary Government $ 1 ,682,95& $ 1,818,723 $ 1697,334 $ 1947,536 

Change In Net PosItion 
Governmental Activthes $  868,522 $ I 045,504 $  578.286 $  656,375 
Business-type Activities 497,843 113,338 129,227 (65538) 
Total Primary Government $ 1,386,365 $ 1.158,842 $  707.513 $  590.837 

Notes: 

Net (expense)/revenue is the difference between the expenses and program revenues ala function or 
program. U indicates the degree to which a function or program supports itself with its own fees and grants 
versus its reliance upon funding from taxes and other gener& revenues. 
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FscaI Year 

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 

$ 965,446 $ 885,342 S 895,992 $ 982,281 S 1,043,148 $1,134,834 

165,688 195433 193.364 212,364 248,369 236,657 
110437 66164 49132 32,691 24590 15.007 
24319 48.533 63012 104.526 98795 43941 
88672 92484 102418 112917 116200 1 9,526 

1 275 825 600 2025 1 050 I 050 
61.572 64518 63404 116764 293870 92270 

8325 13.600 - - - - 
________ 12,000 12000 12,000 12,000 12,000 12,000 

$ 1,437,734 $ 1375899 $ 1379,922 $ 1575568 $ 1838,022 $1,655,285 

$ 92,421 $ 50,091 $ 40.815 $ 13,387 $ 2,850 $ 676 
- - - 455,495 316,758 - 

23,619 16,774 17,854 15,469 21,446 18,761 

190,377 182,902 229.351 143,156 95,334 136,190 

4,064 - - - - - 

(12,000) (12,000) (12,000) (12,000) (12,000) (12,000) 

$ 298,481 $ 247.767 $ 275,020 $ 615,507 $ 424,388 $ 143,627 

1.736215 $ 1,626,666 $ 1,655,942 $ 2,191,075 $2,262,410 $1,798,912 

$ 437,125 $ 338.672 $ 152,201 $ 278,930 $ 604,767 5 348,532 

111,188 (253,842) jjj 6 201,387 - , J98A1 78,870 

$ 548,313 $ 84,830 $ 40,965 $ 480317 $ 506,321 $ 427,402 
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CITY OF ONAWA, IOWA 

TABLE Ill 

Fund Balances of Governmental Funds 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 

(modified accrual basis of accounting) 

Fiscal Year 
2004 2005 2006 2007 

General Fund 
Unreserved $1,387,212 $1 408105 $1,507,762 $ 1661160 
Unassigned - - - - 

Total General Fund $ 1397212 $ 1,408105 $1507762 $ 1,661,160 

All Other GovernmentaP Funds 
R ese rv S 
Unreserved, reported in .  

Debt Servjce Fund 
Special Revenue Funds 
Capital Projects Funds 

Nonspendable 
Restricted 
Assigned 
Unassigned 

Total All Other Governmental 
Funds 

Total Governmental Funds 
Reserved 
Unreserved, reported in 
Nonspendable 
Restricted 
Assigned 
Unassigned 

Total Governmental Funds 

$ 232,713 $ 114,346 $ 116,325 $  121,522 

(40,842) (8348) 4,674 12,370 
391,229 525,367 684.263 869,653 
854,744 (599,243) (701,834) (466.044) 

$ 1,437.844 $ 32,121 $ 103.428 $ 537,501 

$ 232,713 $ 114,345 $ 116,325 $ 121,522 
2,592,343 1,325,881 1,494,865 2,077,139 

$ 2.825,056 $1,440,226 $1 ,61 1.190 $ 2,198,661 

Notes: 

The fluctuations in the fund balance result from construction projects in which funds are borrowed in one year 
and spent in another fiscal year. 

The City implemented GASB 54 in 2011. which changed fund balance classifications for periods beginning after 
June 15, 2010. 
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FSCaI Year 

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2 3 

$1723495 $1745805 $1 696.968 $ $ - S - 
- - - 1 814095 I 967789 2.080722 

$ 1723495 $ 1745.805 $1 P 696,968 $ 1 ! 814 ! 096 $ 1967789 $ 2080722 

$  122463 $ 124,083 $  122,824 $ - $ - $ - 

13,381 14708 14821 - - - 

I 100,105 1  14203 754,545 - - - 

462,1 51) (510.466) (397.118) - - 
- - - 124606 125,439 126036 
- - - 924579 758596 807891 
- - - 12755 12756 12756 
- - - (1.409,645) 1,440,872) (1142464) 

$ 773798 $ 742,528 $ 495,072 $ (347,704) $ (544081) $ (195,781) 

$ 122,463 $ 124083 $  122,824 $ - $ - $ - 
2,374,830 2,364250 2,069,216 - - - 

- - - 124,606 125439 126,036 
- - - 924579 758596 807891 
- - - 12,756 12,756 12,756 
- - - 404,451 526917 938,258 

$ 2.497,293 $ 2,488,333 $ 2,192,040 $1,466,392 $1,423,708 $1884941 
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CITY OF ONAWA. IOWA 

TABLE IV 

Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 

(modified accrual basis of accounting) 

Fiscal Year 
2004 2005 2006 2007 

Revenues 

Taxes $ 1010540 $ 1124437 $ 1,055,853 $ 1128832 
Special Assessments 63047 82285 28791 82372 
Licenses and Permits 21,470 28813 26446 34298 
Intergovernmental Revenue 468180 497583 496157 469443 
Charges for Services 71,991 84338 75924 84,727 
Fines and Forfeits 13355 8,066 14848 14885 
contributions 364420 278773 146917 66151 
Grants 60000 - - - 
Interest 68431 75957 95990 121.100 
Payment in Lieu of Taxes 84552 87654 86578 92,785 
Miscellaneous 46,107 31,136 34,490 102,312 

Total Revenues - $ 2272.094 $ 2299.042 $ 2062994 $ 2,196915 

Expenditures' 

Public Satety $  419.319 $  495741 $  449.045 $ 481.879 
Public Works 296917 195,237 282362 232819 
Culture and Recreation 448,863 363,075 403074 386,380 
Community and Economic Development 153740 359.477 95,261 86,137 

General Government 153,604 140,858 162,244 127417 
capital Projects 932109 1,975,890 278639 127851 
Debt Service 

Principal Retirements 60,000 145,000 645,000 150,000 

Interest 67,148 85.887 81,405 71,961 

Total Expenditures $2531700 $ 3,761,165 $ 2.397,030 $ 1.664,444 

Excess (Deficiency) ot Revenues 
over (under) Expenditures $ (259,606) $ (1,462,123) $ (334,036) S 532,471 

Other Financing Sources (Uses) 
Proceeds from Sale of Bonds $ 1.500,000 $ - $  505,000 $ - 

Transfers In 387,915 545,989 341,755 591,110 
Transfers Out (387,915) (468,696) 341,755) (551,110) 

Sale of Real Estate and Other Assets - - - - 15,000 

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) $ 1,500,000 $ 77,293 $  505,000 $ 55.000 

Net change in fund balances $ 1,240,394 $ (1384.830) $  170,964 $ 587,471 

Total Capital Expenditures from Reconcilition 
of Statement of Revenues, expenditures, and 
Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental 
Funds to the Statement ofActivities 1.134,661 2,413.445 445,746 157,446 

Debt service as a percentage of non-capital 
expenditures 2 9.10% 17.13% 37.23% 14.73% 

80 



Fiscal Year 
2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 

$ 965446 $ 886342 $ 895992 $ 981688 Si .043! 148 51134834 
74,235 103,828 65,997 44,009 22,118 41,840 

30,449 35,050 37,345 9.338 14,102 15,224 
474,859 500 149 527,807 604,801 966,016 590.741 

75,109 82,322 71,274 89,614 86,577 81.276 
13,934 11,636 9,773 12,219 8,801 10.211 

36.430 97,927 104,370 39,567 32,891 50,271 

110437 66,164 49,132 33,284 24,590 15.007 
58.672 92,484 102,418 112,917 116.200 119,526 

195,420 69,318 69,997 128,160 315,526 - 74,054 

$2 064,991 $1,944,220 $ 1,934,105 $ 2.055,597 $2,630,269 $2,132,984 

$ 543,171 $ 652,694 $ 527,035 S 536,217 $ 542,856 $ 534j53 

259,566 315,799 348,416 379,258 330,149 237,000 

410,044 489,568 509,251 628,515 497,388 482,738 

81.891 74.567 104,579 58,046 94,352 82,861 

143,970 143,245 130,196 213,553 302,263 142,758 
195,438 146,256 395,296 1.372,769 637,991 15,848 

165,000 175,000 175,000 185,000 1,035,000 160,000 
63.270 58.255 52,625 59,587 74,954 28,393 

$1,562,350 $ 2,055,384 $2,242,398 $ 3,443,245 $3,514,953 $1,683,751 

$ 202,641 $ (111,164) $ (308.293) $(1,387,648) S(884,684) $ 449,233 

$ - $ - $ - $ 650,000 $ 830,000 $ - 
372.796 303.972 867,760 248,454 595,516 188,053 

(360,796) (291,972) (855,760) (236,454) (583,516) (176,053) 

83,325 -. 50,000 - - - - 

$ 95,325 $ 62,000 $ 12,000 $  662,000 $ 842,000 S 12,000 

$ 297,986 $ (49,164) J296,293) $ 725,648) $ (42,654) $ 461,233 

315,792 509 351 564,534 1.787,011 515,748 149,327 

1476% 15.09% 13.57% 14.77% 41.12% 1228% 
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CITY OF ONAWA, IOWA 

TABLE V 

General Government Expenditures By Function 
General, Special Revenue, Debt Service and Capital Projects Funds 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 

Community 
Public Public Culture & & Economic General Debt Capital 

Year Safety Works Recreation Development Government Service Outlay Total 

2003-04 $419319 
2004-05 495741 
2005-06 449045 
2006-07 481,879 
2007-08 543,171 
2008-09 652694 
2009-10 527035 
2010-11 536,217 
2011-12 542.856 
2012-13 $ 534.153 

$296,917 
195 !  237 
282,362 
232,819 
259,566 
315,799 
348,416 
379,256 
330,149 

$ 237,439 

$ 448863 
363 !  075 
403,074 
386,380 
410,044 
489,568 
509,251 
628,515 
497,388 

$ 526,804 

$ 153,740 
359,477 

95,261 
86,137 
81,891 
74,567 

104,579 
68,046 
94,352 

$ 36,795 

$153,604 $127,148 
140,858 230,887 
162244 726.405 
127,417 221,961 
143,970 228,270 
143245 233,255 
130,196 227,625 
213,853 244,587 
302,263 1,109,954 

$142,758 $ 188,393 

$ 932,109 $2,531,700 
1,975,890  3,761,165 

278,639 2397030 
127 : 851  1664,444 
195438 1,862,350 
146256 2,055384 
395,296 2242,398 

1,372,769 3,443,245 
637,991 3,514,953 

$ 15409 $1,683,751 

TABLE VI 

General Government Revenues By Source 
General. Special Revenue, Debt Service and Capital Projects Funds 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 

Licenses Inter- Charges 
Fiscal and Govern- for 
Year Taxes Permits mental Services 

2003-04 
2004-05 
2005-06 
2006-07 
2007-08 
2008-09 
2009-10 
2010-Il 
2011-12 
201 2-13 

$1,010, 540 
1,124,437 
1,055,853 
1,128,832 

965,446 
885,342 
895,992 
981,688 

1,043,148 
$1,134,834 

$21,470 
28,813 
26,446 
34,298 
30.449 
35,050 
37345 
9,338 

14,102 
$15,224 

$468,180 
497,583 
496,157 
469,443 
474,859 
500,149 
527,807 
604,801 
966,016 

$ 590,741 

$71,991 
84,338 
76,924 
84,727 
75,109 
82,322 
71,274 
89,614 
86,577 

$ 81,276 

Fines 
and 
For- 

feitures 

$13,356 
8,066 

14,848 
14,885 
13,934 
11,636 
9,773 

12,219 
8,801 

$10,211 

Contributions 
from 

Property 
Owners 

$ 63,047 
82,285 
28,791 
82372 
74,235 

103,626 
65,997 
44,009 
2211 8 

$41,848  

Miscel- 
laneous 

$2,123,510 
473,520 
868, 97 5 
382,358 
430,959 
325, 893 
325,917 
963,928 
489,507 

$ 258850 

Total 

$3,772,094 
2,299, 042 
2,567,994 
2,195915 
2064,991 
1,944,220 
1, 934 , 105 
2,705. 597 
2, 630.269 

$2,132,984 
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CITY OF ONAWA, IOWA 

TABLE VII 

Property Tax Levies and Collections 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 

Total Current Percent Delinquent 
Collection Tax Tax of Levy Tax 

Year Levy Collections Collected Collection& 

2 003-04 $ 552,236 $ 544,837 98.66% $ 5634 
2 004-05 612,963 587,517 9585 5,863 
2 005-06 702,767 682,672 97.14 4,889 
2 006-07 674,524 650,773 96.48 5,305 
2007-08 685, 857 687,004 100.17 5,660 
2008-09 744,688 752,215 101.01 224 
2009-10 798.699 793,710 9938 6,420 
2010-11 832,457 818, 634 9834 6,107 
2011-12 882,881 867616 9827 7,698 
2012-13 $ 893,733 $ 875,623 97.97% $ 8584 

TABLE VIII 

Assessed and Taxable Value of Property 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 

Real Property 
Collection Assessed Taxable 

Year Value Value 

2003-04 $ 91.062,986 $58,404,414 
2004-05 92909,936 57,335289 
2005-06 96,444.611 60,112,322 
2006-07 95,895362 58 , 453, 898 
2 007-08 96,459, 44 2 58,325529 
2 008-09 100,630,414 59,526,703 
2009-10 102,400,242 59,085,451 
201 0-Il 104,873399 60,650, 334 
2011-12 106,047.339 62,494514 
2012 -1 3 $106,951,407 $62,344,840 

1 

 The Monona County Treasurers Office does not record for which year delinquent payments are made 
therefore delinquent collections are all included in one amount. 
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Total Tax 
Collections 

$550,471 
593,380 
687,561 
656,078 
674,760 
752439 
800,136 
824, 74 1 
875,314 

$ 884,207 

Ratio of Total 
Tax Collections 

to Total Tax Levy 

99 68% 
96.81 
97 84 
97.84 

100.99 
101 04 
100.18 
99.07 
99.14 
98. 93% 

Assessed 
Value 

$1607102 
406,150 
442291 
511068 
441847 
476986 
441,788 
372,360 
289712 

$ 262,097 

Taxable 
Value 

$1607102 
406150 
442,291 
511,068 
441847 
476, 986 
441,788 
372,360 
289,712 

$ 262097 

Assessed 
Value 

$ 92,670,088 
93,316086 
96,8 86 ! 902 
96,406,430 
96,901,289 

101,107,400 
102,842,030 
I 05245,759 
106337,051 

$107213, 564 

Taxable 
Value 

$60,011,516 
57,741,439 
60554613 
58 !  964,966 
58,767,376 
60,003,689 
59,527,239 
61,022,694 
62,784,226 

$62,606,937 

Ratio of 
Total 

Taxable 
Value 

64.76% 
61.88 
62.50 
61.16 
60.65 
59.35 
57.88 
57.98 
59.04 
58. 39% 

City's 
Tota' 
Direct 
Rate 

12.201 66 
13.65668 
13.6 1467 
13. 97673 
13.08122 
13.05176 
13.24699 
13.42917 
13.78411 
13. 89426 
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CITY OF ONAWA, IOWA 

TABLE IX 

Property Tax Rates and Tax Levies 
Direct and Overlapping Governments 

(Per $1,000 Cf Assessed Value) 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 

Tax 

Fiscal Special Debt Total 

Year General -  Revenue Service Direct 

2003-04 9.67543 2.33942 0.18681 12.20166 

2004-05 9.85210 1.35698 2.44760 13.65668 

2005-06 9,78634 1.55807 2.27026 13,61467 

2006-07 9.90098 1.77006 2.30569 13.97673 

2007-08 9.68263 114266 2.25593 1308122 

2008-09 9.57487 1.22236 2.25453 13,05176 

2009-10 9.51294 1.60857 2,12548 13 24699 

2010-11 9.48824 1.87545 2.06548 13.42917 

2011-12 9.46065 1.49049 2.83297 13 78411 

2012-13 9,46336 1 67713 2,75377 1 3,89426 

20 03-04 436,736 104,636 10,864 552,236 

20 04-0 5 416, 5 93 57,695 138,675 612,963 

2005-06 487,292 78.000 137,475 702,767 

200 6-0 7 456,405 82,184 1 35,955 674,524 

2007-08 495,282 58,000 132 575 685, 857 

2008-09 540,856 68, 552 135,280 744,688 

2009-10 570,320 95,754 132625 798,699 

2010-1 1 583,267 114.445 134.745 832,457 

2011-12 598,435 93579 190,867 882,881 

2012-1 3 597085 105, 000 191,648 893 773 

State law limits maximum tax rate for the General Fund to $8.10 per thousand 
dollars of assessed vajuation (100 percent basis) effective July I 1976. 
Limitation does not include debt service. 
Taxes Due July 1. 
Taxes DeUnquent First Half - October 1; Second Half - April 1. 
Penalties for Delinquency: 1 Percent per month, 
Discount Allowed: None 
Uncollected Taxes Handled as Follows: Delinquent real estate tax list published in newspaper prior to May 16. 
Taxes collected by Monona County and distributed to the City of Onawa in proportion of its len' to all levies. 
Tax Sale Date: First Monday in June. 
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Overlapping 

Tax Rates 

West Western Total 

Monona Monona Iowa State Total Direct and 

Schoo1 County Tech Levy Overlapping Overlapping 

1164505 638161 0.54141 0.00400 1877207 30.97373 

12.34320 6.86233 0.57204 0.00400 19.78157 33.43825 

13.38780 7.06811 0.69873 0.00400 21.15864 34 77331 

15.66733 7.11172 0.71282 0.00400 23.51587 37.49260 

15.60332 7.16224 0.73555 0.00350 23.70461 36.78583 

14.83407 8.21534 0.82762 0.00350 2388053 3693229 

15.05894 7.71758 0.62137 0.00300 23.60089 36.64788 

14.98761 7.78490 0.81778 0.00340 23.59369 37.02286 

14.69493 766076 0.77869 0,00320 23.33758 37.12169 

16.73448 7.68089 0.77849 0.00330 25.19716 3909142 

710,839 382,970 32,491 240 1126,540 1678,776 

712,714 396,240 33,030 231 1,142,215 1755178 

810,693 428,007 42,311 242 1,261.253 1 984,547 

925,003 419.342 41,442 236 1,386,023 2.060547 

928,720 420,906 43,226 207 1,393,059 2078,916 

890,099 492,951 49,660 210 1.432.920 2,177,608 

896,417 459406 48,894 179 1,404896 2,203,595 

914,564 475,056 49.903 207 1,439,750 2,272,207 

935.167 480.975 48,889 201 1,465,232 2348113 

1 047.695 480,877 48,739 207 1.577,518 2,471,291 
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CITY OF ONAWA, IOWA 

TABLE X 

Special Assessment Collections 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 

Current Current RatEo of Total 
Fiscal Assess- Assessments Co] lections Outstanding 
Year ments Due Collected to Amount Assessments Due 

2003-04 $174,527 $ 46,788 26.81% $127,739 
2004-05 127,739 36,693 28.72 91,046 
2005-06 148005 29,471 32 37 118,534 
2006-07 184,465 30,030 16.2$ 191,787 
2007-08 259,511 67,724 26.10 154,435 
2008-09 292046 90,455 30.97 201591 
2009-10 210,254 51968 24.72 158286 
2010-11 205,517 44,009 2141 161,508 
2011-1 2 161508 38,695 23.96 122,813 
20 12-13 $ 165,178 $ 41,840 25.33% $123,338 
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CITY OF ONAWA, IOWA 

TABLE XI 

Ratio of Net General Obligation Bonded Debt 
to Assessed Value and Net General Obligation Bonded Debt Per Capita 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 

Less: Ratio of Net Net 
Debt Net Bonded Bonded Bonded 

Gross Service Net Net Debt to Debt as % 
Fiscal Popula Taxable Bonded Monies Bonded Taxable Per of Personal 
Year tion Value Debt Available Debt Value Capita Income 

2003-04 3.091  $60,011,516 $2151429 $ -  $2151429 .036 to 1 $696.03 3.88% 
2004-05 3,091 57,741,439 1,995.715 - 1,995715 .035 to 1 645.65 3.60 
2005-06 3.091 60,554,613 1,845,000 4,674 1,840326 .035 to 1 595,38 3.32 
2006-07 3091 58964,966 1,695,000 12,370 1,625630 028 101 525.92 2.93 
2007-08 3091 58767,376 1,530,000 13,381 1,516,619 026 to 1 501.90 274 
2008-09 3091 60,003,689 1,355,000 14,708 1,340,292 .022101 433.61 2.42 
2009-10 3,091 59,527,239 1.180,000 14,821 1,165179 .020 to 1 376.96 2.10 
2010-11 2,998 61,022,694 1,645,000 6,675 1,638325 .027to 1 546.47 2.28 
2011-12 2,998 62,784,226 1,440,000 4,638 1 435,362 .023 to 1 478.77 1.99 
2012-13 2,998 $62,606,937 $1,280,000 $ -  $1280000 .020 to 1 $426.95 1.78% 

Note; City-wide personal income data from the year 2010 and 2000 in the amount of $7201 1,960 and $55,415,448 
respectively, from Table XVI, was used to calculate the net bonded debt as a percentage of personal income. 
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Debt Limit 

Total Net Debt Applicable to Limit 

Legal Debt Margin 

Total Net Debt Applicable to the Limit as a 
percentage of debt limit 

Assessed Property Value 
Total Real Estate and Corporation 

Debt Limit - 5% of Total Actual Va'uation 

Amount of Debt 
AppIicabe to Debt Limit: 

Total Bonded Debt 

Legal Debt Margin 

CITY OF ONAWA, IOWA 

TABLE XII 

Legal Debt Margin Information 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 

Fiscal Year 
2QQ4 2006 2QQZ 

$4,633,504 $ 4665,804 $ 4,817.537 $ 4,820,322 

2151,429 1,995.715 1845000 1 695000 

$ 2.482,075 $ 2.670.089 $ 2,972537 $ 3125322 

46.43% 4277% 38.30% 35.16% 

TABLE XIII 

Computation of Legal Debt Margin 
June 30, 2013 

$ 107,213.564 

$ 5360,678 

1,280.000 

$ LQQ±Th 

Note: Under Title IX, Subtitle 2, Chapter 358C, Paragraph 16 of the State of owa Code, the City's debt limit should 
not exceed 5% of the estimated value of the taxable property within the district. 
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Fiscal Year 
2008 2009 2Db 2011 2012 2013 

$4,845,064 $5,055,370 $5,142,102 $5,262,288 $ 5,316,853 $ 5,36D,678 

1 ,530,D00 1,355,000 1,180,000 1,645,000 1,440,000 1 280,000 

$ 3,315,064 $ 3.700,370 $3,962,102 $3,617,288 $ 3876853 $4,080,678 

31.58% 2680% 22.95% 3126% 27.08% 23.88% 

90 



CITY OF ONAWA, IOWA 

TABLE XIV 

Computation of Direct and Overlapping Debt 
June 30, 2013 

City of 
Onawa 
Share of 

Debt 

$ 1,280,000 

$ t28Q 

Percentage 
Applicable 
Net Debt* To This 

Name of Governmental Unit Outstanding Governmental Unit 

City of Onawa, Iowa $1,280,000 100% 

Total $ 12flQ00 

Net debt outstanding is total bonds outstanding less funds available for debt service. 

TABLE XV 

Ratio of Annual Debt Service Expenditures for 
General Bonded Debt to Total General Expenditures 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 

Total Total 
Debt General 

Interest Service Exøenditures 

$67,148 $127,148 $1,081,972 
85,887 230887 1,027,126 
81,405 221405 1,009,479 
71961 221961 1,060,756 
63,270 228,270 1,129,546 
58,255 233,255 1,316,205 
52,625 227,625 1,294,023 
59,587 244,587 1,258,023 
59,478 264,478 1,399,816 

$ 28,393 $ 188,393 $1,214,312 

Fiscal 
Year Principal 

2003-04 $ 60,000 
2004-05 145000 
2005-06 140000 
2006-07 150, 000 
2007-08 165, 000 
2008-09 175000 
2009-10 175000 
2010-11 185,000 
2011-12 205,000 
20 12-13 $ 160,000 

Ratio of 
Debt Service 

to Total General 
Exøenditures 

1175% 
2248 
21.93 
20.92 
20.21 
17.72 
17.59 
1944 
18.89 
1 5.51% 
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CITY OF ONAWA, IOWA 

TABLE XVI 

Demographic Statistics 

(1) (1) 

Per 
Capita Median 
Income Age 

$ 2,659 38.3 

7166 39.2 

10,826 43.2 

17.928 42.3 

$24,020 43.8 

(I) (4) 

Per Total 
Fiscal Personal 
Year Population Income 

1970 3154 $ 6386486 

1980 3283 23,532,544 

1990 2,936 31,785,136 

2000 3.09 1 55,415,448 

2010 2998 $72,011,960 

(2) (3) 

Monona County 
School Unemployment 

Enrollment Rate 

1,154 41% 

833 5.4% 

733 4.2% 

679 3:1 % 

678 7.4% 

Sources: 
(1) Bureau of Census 
(2) Annual School Census 
(3) Iowa Department of Job Service 
(4) Computation of Per CapIta Income muluplied by Population 
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CITY OF ONAWA, IOWA 

TABLE XVII 

Property Value !  Construction, and Bank Deposits 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 

Fiscal 
Year 

2 002-03 
2 003-04 
2004-05 
2005-06 
2006-07 
2 007-08 
2008-09 
2 009-10 
20 10-li 
2011-12 
2012-13 

Commercial (1) 
Construction 

No.of No.of 
Units Value 

(3) $ ( 24634) 
(2) ( 28,771) 
21 3125.585 
(I) (233,809) 
(1) 496074 
7 2342800 

(1) 171,622 
1 60,000 
5 3045,030 

20 6,191.860 
9 $ 577,890  

Residential (1) Bank 
Construction Deposits (2) (3) 

Units Value (in Thousands) 
(7) $ 641,368 $ 83,867 
(3) 2,585 93,954 
(1) ( 267,178) 85,037 
(2) 559,460 95,877 
(1) 4585,830 100527 
(3) 947866 116,173 
3 380,875 112,534 
5 462,000 102,953 
5 920000 127404 

74 456,471 130,315 
62 $ 615,646 $135,931 

The 2004-2005 information includes annexed property (including land). 
(1) Includes new construction and remodeling. 
(2) Combined deposfts in three banks through 2005-2006 (Source: Bank Financial Statements). 
(3) Combined deposits in four banks for 2006-2007 and after (Source: Bank Financial Statements). 

TABLE XVIII 
Principal Taxpayers 

June 30, 2013 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 

2004 2005 2006 2007 Taxoaver 

Iowa Ln,coln County Property, [[C 
Western Iowa Cooperative 
Vetter Equipment 
Onawa - Pam Limited Partnership 
Westendorf, Inc. 
Union Pacific Railroad 
Bradley Properties LLC 
Matthew and Christine Westendor 
James W & Diane P Stangel 
Qwest Corp 
Rega' Manors of Onawa, Inc. 
Richard Stlmari 
NFG, LW. 
NILS Holdings LLC 
Timothy and Brenda Peters 
Brett and Debra Ewing 
Sarah and Derek Carfrnili 
Longlines, Inc 

$ 750,422 
1,01 5,000 
1,207,409 
1, 140. 984 

2,319,778 

$ 1,659,824 $ 1.659,824 $ 1,688,462 
1,01 5,000 850,000 850,000 
1,146,494 1,146.494 1,146.494 
1 061,653 1,061,653 1,061,653 

824,000 824,000 824,000 

597,279 597,279 

2,299,145 2,299,145 2,299,145 

743.744 
813.288 738,098 738,098 738,098 

896,335 647,179 647,179 647,179 
821,460 629.559 629,559 629,199 
688.429 _______________ _______________ 593,720 

$10,396,849 $1 0,618,231 $1 0,453,231 $10,477,950 
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2008 2Q22 

$ 2,359,905 $ 3,054,167 

850000 850,000 

1,103855 1.051,214 

1,009520 1,009,529 

824.000 824,000 

895.615 771,906 

2,621,918 2,527,859 

824,040 912 .678 

724,983 711,870 

626,651 

659824  

$ 3,419.584 $2,896,591 
$ 3,330,662 $ 3,370,908 3,342,982 2.874.460 

890,817 1,293471 1 177100 1 012306 
1,124,887 1,166507 1.166,507 1.012,004 
1,009,529 1,012,004 1.012004 1,003,197 

935,232 
873662 879.028 879028 755,964 
771,906 720,688 720688 720,688 

748,529 690,305 
668,140 

2,724,305 2,984,226 

762.665 675,057 
754007 770,914 754,071 
754,582 733,129 733,129 

$11,673,669 $12,349,874 $12997022 $13605932 $13,953,622 $12569887 
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CITY OF ONAWA, IOWA 

TABLE XIX 

Full-Time Equivalent City Government Employees by Function 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 

Function 
General Government 
Library 
Public Safety 

Police Officers 
Fire Volunteers 

Highways and Streets 
Street Maintenance 

Culture and Recreation 
Electric 
Water 
Sewer 

2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 

4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 
2.5 2.5 2.6 2.6 2.6 2.6 3.5 2.7 2.7 2.6 

6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6.4 6.3 
24 24 24 24 24 25 22 22 22 24 

1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 
6 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 3,1 3.3 
4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 3 3 
3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 
3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 == :=;a;;; 

54 55 55.1 55.1 55.1 56,1 54 532 46.7 49.7 

Source: City of Onawa AccounUng Department 
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cm' OF ONAWA, IOWA 

TABLE XX 

Princrpal Employers 

Employer Employees 
2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 

Burgess Health Center 221 245 250 250 252 261 
West Monona School District 101 110 128 131 123 Ill 
Monona County 110 110 log 107 105 106 
Elmwood Care Center 85 89 81 80 81 62 
Westendorf Manufacturkig, Inc 75 74 74 74 72 89 
City of Onawa 71 65 64 62 55 59 
McDonald's Restaurant 49 55 47 41 48 48 
Crossroads of Western Iowa 41 50 38 36 37 36 
Vaughn Foods 40 38 39 40 35 37 
Stangel Pharmacy 26 35 34 32 28 28 

Source: Monona County Economic Development Partnership 
Iowa Area Development Group and direct 
communication with employers. 

Note: Comparative data for 2003-2007 is not currently available 
The total employment of the City of Onawa is not available 
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Fiscal Year 
2004 2005 2006 2007 

174 154 136 190 
48 203 47 24 

462 174 222 183 

43 46 64 47 

40 40 
10 19 

88 87 
3,717,616 4,841,880 

2000 3,315 

183,600 177991 
107,433 96,013 

59% 54% 

40 40 
14 17 

81 67 
1,904,285 5,353,689 

4,565 2,420 

193,084 173,487 
103,043 99,765 

53% 58% 

CITY OF ONAWA, IOWA 

TABLE XXI 

Operabng Indicators by Function 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 

Function 
Potice 

Physical Arrests 
Parking Violations 
Traffic Violations 

Fire 
Number of Cads Answered 

Highways and Streets 
Street Maintenance (Miles) 
Street Reconstruction (Blocks) 

Building Permits 
Number 
Value 
Permit Fees 

Water 
Water Pumped (in thousands of gallons) 
Water Billed (in thousands of gallons) 
Percent Accountable 

Source: City of Onawa Accounting Department 
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2008 2009 

117 81 
7 7 

133 119 

54 38 

32 32 
12 5 

77 87 
3,290666 919,105 

3,325 3,020 

159913 169,416 
97374 97568 

61% 58%  

2010 

76 
4 

191 

32 

32 
2 

95 
1,103,609 

4,210 

177,128 
91268 

52% 

2011 

78 

105 

54 

35 

79 
4,352,815 

3,700 

194,567 
97,220 

50% 

2012 

112 
3 

134 

56 

35 
5 

94 
6,648,331 

8,210 

195,525 
92,224 

47% 

2013 

155 

220 

57 

35 
S 

71 
1,193536 

8,450 

189,069 
89655 

47% 
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1 
6 
2 

40 

4 
1 
1 
1 
1 
1 

21 

n/a 
1,389 

501,546 
nia 

1,728,000 

1 
6 
2 

40 

4 

21 

28 
1,384 

485912 
nia 

1 728000 

6 
2 

40 

4 

21 

28 
1 385 

527396 
nia 

1 728000 

6 
2 

40 

4 
1 
1 
1 
1 
1 

21 

28 
1 391 

473807 
96 

1,728,000 

nfa 

1 361 
264,406 
852000 

39.5 
1 

1,355 
241,986 
852000 

39.5 
I 

1 356 
262988 
852,000 

39.5 

1,364 
230,645 
852,000 

CITY OF ONAWA, IOWA 

TABLE XXII 

Capital Asset Statistics by Function 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 

2004 2005 2006 2007 
Function 
Police 

Stations 
Patrol Units 

Fire Stations 
Highways and Streets 

Streets City Maintained (miles) 
Culture and Recreation 

Parks 
Swimming Pools 
Libraries 
Community Centers 
Airports 
Golf Courses 

Cemetery 
Cemeteries (acres) 

Water 
Water Mains (miles) 
Number of Service Connections 
Daily Ave. Consumption in Gallons 
Fire Hydrants 
Maximum Daily Capacity 
(thousands in gallons) 

Sewer 
Sanitary Sewer (miles) 
Number of Treatment Plants 
Number of Service Connections 
Daily Ave. Treatments in Gallons 
Maximum Daily Capacity 
(thousands in gallons) 

Source: City of Onawa Accounting Department 
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2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 

6 
1 

35.3 

4 
1 
1 
1 
1 
1 

21 

40 
1,487 

534,221 
101 

1,728,000 

1 1 
6 6 
2 2 

40 32 

4 4 
1 I 
1 1 
1 1 
1 1 
1 1 

21 21 

28 28.5 
1,394 1 398 

438,118 464,153 
96 99 

1,728,000 1728,000 

I 
6 
2 

32 

4 
I 
I 
1 
1 
1 

21 

40 
1,494 

485,304 
100 

1,728,000 

1 
6 
2 

35-3 

4 
1 
1 
1 
1 
1 

21 

40 
1,488 

533,060 
101 

1,728000 

1 
7 
1 

35.3 

4 
I 
1 
1 
1 
1 

21 

40 
1,494 

517,997 
101 

1,728,000 

39.5 39.5 
1 1 

1,368 1 373 
264,967 253,145 
852,000 85200C 

3975 
1 

1,388 
417,047 
852,000 

39.75 
1 

1,382 
538.151 
852,000 

39,75 
1 

1,385 
386,691 
852,000 

39.75 
1 

1,388 
276,644 
852,000 
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Date of Incorporation 
Form of Government 
Are a 
Miles of Streets 
Number of Street Lights 

Fire Protection: 
Number of Stations 
Number of Volunteer Firemen  

CITY OF ONAWA, IOWA 

TABLE XXIII 

Miscellaneous Statistics 

1859 
Mayor - Council 
5.3 Sq Miles 
35,3 
414 

1 
24 

Police Protection: 
Number of Stations 
Number of Policemen and Officers 

Education: 
Number of Schools 

Municipal Water Department: 
Number of Consumers 
Average Daily Consumption 
Miles of Water Mains 

Miles of Sewers: 
Sanitary Sewers 

Lift Stations 

Building Permits Issued 2012-13 

Recreation and Culture 
Number of Parks 
Number of Libraries 
Number of Volumes 
Total Library Circulation 

1 Public 
(Elementary, Middle High School 

Early Childhood Development) 

1,494 
517,997 Gallons 
40 Miles 

39.75 Miles 

4 

71 

4 
'1 
31742 
31,287 
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COMMENTS AND RECOMMENDATIONS 



CITY OF ONAWA IOWA 

5(1 IEDULE OF PRIOR AU T FINDINGS 

YEAR ENDED JUNE30, 2012 

Status of Prior Audit Findinas 

Il-A- 12  Seweation of Accounting Functions 

Observation - The finding was incompatible accounting functions regarding cash receipts are handled 
by the same employee. 

Recommendation - The auditor recommended that one empJoyee be designated to open the mail and 
make a prelist of receipts, one employee post the receipts and the employee who opens the luau make 
the bank deposit. 

Current Status - The City did riot correct this weakness, and it is renumbered below as Il-A-I 3. 

Ill-H-I 2 Financial Condition 

Condition - The finding was fund deficits in several individual funds. 

Recommendation - The auditor recommended the City monitor these funds and investigate alternatives 
to eliminate these deficits. 

Current Status - The City did not correct this audit finding, and it is renumbered below as Ill-H-I 3. 

111-1-12  WaterLoss 

Condition - The finding was percentage water loss calculated was significantly greater than the 
allowable rate set by the Iowa Department of Natural Resources. 

Recommendation - The auditor recommended the City should ensure all usage locations are metered 
and all meters are read on a routine basis. In addition, the City should attempt to locate major leaks and 
repair or replace as necessaiy 

Current Status - The City did not correct this audit finding, and it is renumbered below as Ill-I-I 

]lI-J-12  Annual Financial Report 

Condition - The finding was the annual financial report was not filed by December L 

Recommendation - The auditor recommended the City skould file the report by December I. 

Current Status- The City did not correct this audit finding, and it is renumbered below as Ill-i-I 3. 

lll-K-12 Revenue Bond 

Condition - The finding was Ike City did not meet required net revenue bond covenants in the Water 
System. 

Recommendation - The auditor reeomiuneiided the City review water rates and implement cost corurok 

Current Status - The City corrected this audit finding. 
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CITY OF ONAWA, IOWA 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND qUESTIONED COSTS 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2013 

Part I: Summary Of the Independent Auditors' Results 

A. Unqualified opinions were issued on the financial statements. 

B. 

	

	A significant deficiency in internal control over financial reporting was disclosed by the audit of the 
financial statements and is considered a material weakness. 

C. The audit did 'lot disclose any non-compliance which is material to the financial statements. 

Part ii: Findin2s Related to the Financial Statements 

Material Weakness: 

li-A- 13 Sepreation of Accounting Functions 

Observation - An important aspect of internal control is the segregation of accounting functions among 
employees. Several incompatible accounting functions regarding cash receipts are handled by the same 
employee. 

Recommendations - We recommend that one employee be designated to open the mail and nak a 
prelist of receipts, one employee post (he receipts and the employee who opens the mail make the bank 
deposit. 

Response - Due to the number of personnel in the office, it is not feasible at this time to break down the 
segregation of duties any further. 

Conclusion - We realize that there are a limited number of personnel available and we accept the City's 
response. Our purpose in making this observation is to remind management of the careful attention and 
scrutiny of the records that is necessary when a limited number of personnel are available wInch makes 
ideal controls impossible. 

instances of Non-Compliance: 

No matters were reported. 
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CI LY 0] ()NAWA IOWA 

SCIIED(JIEOFFINI)INGS ANDQuESLIONEDC0SIs 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013 

Pan lit: Oilier F]rldinRs Related to euired Statutory Reporting 

Ill-A-I 3 Certified Budget - Disbursements did not exceed the amount budgeted in any function and the 
amended budget was adopted by May] I 

Ill-B-]] 

Ill-C-i] 

lll-D-l3 

lll-E-13 

Questionable Disbursements - Wc noted no d isbursenients for parties, banq uets or other 
entertainment for employees that we believe may constitute an unlawhjl expenditure from public 
funds as defined in an Attorney General's opinion dated April 25 1979. 

[ravel Expense - No expenthturcs of City money for travel expense of spouses of City officials or 
employees wcrc noted. 

Business Transactions - No significant transactions between the City and City officials or 
employees were noted. 

Bond Coverage . Surety bond co'.erage of City officials and employees is in accordance with 
statutory provisions. The amount of coverage should be reviewed annually to insure the coverage 
is adequate for current operations. 

fl-F- 3 Council Minutes - No transactions were found that we believe should ha.e been approved in the 
Council minutes but were not. Closed sessions appear to have been handled and documented 
according to Chapter 21 of the Code of Iowa. Publication of Council minutes appear to he 
completed within fifteen days. 

II -(1- 13 Derosits and Investments - No instances of noncompliance with the deposit and investment 
provisions of Chapter I 2B and 12C of the Code of Iowa and the Citys investment policy were 
noted. 

ill-H- 13 Hnancial Condition - Ihere were fund deficits in the following individual funds at June 30,2013: 

Speciaf Revenue - TIF 
Debt Service 
Capital Project - Library Expansion 
Capital Project - 2011 Street Project 
Capita! Project - Fire Station 
Capital Project - 2013 Street Project 

.5  10,385 
$  9,976 
S 21,268 
S 649,6 14 
$450,782 
.5  439 

Recommendation - The City should monitor these funds and investigate aIternati.es to elirniiiate 
th ese deficits. 

Response - The City intends to finance these deficits From various resou'ces iiiclud ing general 
uiids, special assess'nenls to he collected, and future property tax levies. 

Conclusion - Response accepted 
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(I I Y OF ONAWA. IoWA 

Sd [[DULL OF FIN DINGS AND QL'ILSTIONED COSTS 

YEAR ENDEDJUNE30, 2013 

11-1-13 Water Loss - The percentage water loss Calculated was significantly greater than the allowable rate 
set by the Iowa Department olNatural Resources. 

Recommendatjon - The City should ensure usage locations are metered and all meters arc road 
on a routine basis, In addition. the City should attempt to locate major leaks and repair or replace 
as necessary. 

Response - 1 he City is ri the proccS of trying to ideritif' potential leaks in the 'atcr system arid 
are continually replacing water meters. 

Conclusion - Response accepted. 

Ill-i-I] Annual Financial Reporl - The annual Financial report was not flied by December 1. 

Recommendation -1 lie annual financial report in future years should be completed by December 
to comttplv with the Code nithe State of Iowa. 

Response - J listorically, we have waited until the completion of the audit to ensure accuracy. 

Conclusion - Response accepted. 
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INDFPFNDENF AUDITORS' REPORION INTERNAL CONTROL OVER HNANCIAL 
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE ANDOTHER MATTERS BASED 

ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN 
ACCORDANCE WIT!! GOVERNMENTA GD/rING STANDARDS 

To lie Honorable Mayor and 
Members of th e City Council 

(it) ofOnawa, Iowa 

We have audited in accordance with the auditing standards genernl ly accepted in the United States of America 
and lie standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-
type activities the discretely presented component unit, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund 
informatron of the CITY OF ONAWA, IOWA, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2013, and the related notes 
to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the City of Onawa, Iowa's basic financial statements and 
have issued our report thereon date December 9,20 3 

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered City of Onawa, Jowas internal 
control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures thai are appropriate in the 
irculnsranees for thc purpose of epressitig our opinions on the financial statements, hut not for the purpose of 

expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of City ol Onawa, Iowa's internal control. Accordingly. we do not 
express an opinion on the effectiveness ofCity olOnawa, Iowa's iiiterna control. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the preceding paragraph and was 
not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal eontro! that might be material weaknesses or significant 
deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies ma) exist that were lot identified 
lowever, as described in the accompaiiyiilg Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs, we identified a 

tiefic ielicy in internal control that we consider to be a material weakness. 

A t/c/kwnct in a lernal control exists when t lie dc's go or ope rat on of a con tro I does not a I low ( U aim gene nt or 
eiiiployccs, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, 
Ililsstaicmenis on a trniely basis. A na/eric? n'ea)rnevs is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, ii nternal 
control such that there IS a reasonable possibility a material misstatement of the City of Onawa. Iowa's financial 
statelnelits will not be prevented. or detected and corrected, 01 a timely basis. We consider the deficiency 
internal control described in Part II ofihe accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs as item Il-A-
Ii to be a mal erial weakness. 

A .igii'/ic-aei/ c/cfkkncv is a deficiency or a coiu bination of deficiencies in 'iterna I control wh icli is less severe 
than a nateria 'eakness yet important enough to merit artcntio,t by those cha rQcd with governaice 
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Compliance and Other Matters 

As pan of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City of Onawa, Iowa's financial statements are free 
of material misstatement, we perfonned tests of its compliance with cerlain provisions of laws, regulations, 
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the 
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing all opinion on compliance with those 
provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of 
our tests disclosed instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government 
Audithig Standaris and which are described in Part Ill of tIle accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned 
Costs. 

City of Onawa, Iowa's Response to Findings 

The City of Onawa, iowa's response to findings identified in our audit is described in the accompanying Schedule 
of Findings and Questioned Costs. City of Onawa, Iowa's response was not subjected to tile auditing procedures 
applied in the audit of the financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on it. 

Purpose of this Report 

The purpose ofthis report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the 
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control or on 
compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing 
Standards in considering the entity's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not 
suitable for any other purpne. 

iS.- 
- 

Certified Public Accountants 

Sioux City, Iowa 
Decem her 9, 20 13 
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